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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
ANNUAL ACTIVITY REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To The Board of Directors of Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi;
Report on Annual Activity Report of Board of Directors within the scope of
External Audit Guidelines

1. We have audited annual activity report of Vakif Leasing Inc. ("Company"), and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred as "Group")
for the accounting period ending on 31 December, 2016.

Responsibility of Board of Directors for the Annual Activity Report

2. Company’s management is responsible for preparation of annual activity report, which coincides with consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Turkish Commercial Code ("TCC") under article 514 of law number 6102, and which reflects
provisions of "Communiqué on Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets (II-14.1) " ("Communiqué") of Capital
Markets Board ("CMB"), and for assurance of internal control required for preparation of such an activity report.

Responsibility of Independent Auditor

3. Our responsibility is to issue an opinion based on the independent audit we carried out in accordance to article 397 of TCC
and Communiqué, in order to evaluate whether the financial information in this activity report coincides with consolidated
financial statements of the independent auditors report of Group, dated 18 February, 2015.

We carried out an independent audit in accordance to External Audit Standards, which is a part of Turkish Auditing Standards
issued by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority. These standards ensure reconciliation to ethical
provisions and executions and assure that independent audit and financial information within this activity report coincide with
consolidated financial statements.

Independent audit involves application of audit procedures in order to obtain audit evidence about historical financial data. The
selection of such procedures is based on professional judgment of independent auditor.

We believe that audit evidence we obtain while an independent audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for an
audit opinion.

Basaran Nas Independent Auditor and independent Accountant Public Accountant Inc. a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
BJK Plaza, Siileyman Seba Avenue No. 48 B Block F: 9 Akaretler Besiktas; 34357 Istanbul- Turkey
www.pwc.com/tr Telephone: +90 (212) 326 6060, Facsimile: +90 (212) 326 6050
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Opinion
4. As a result of our assessment, we found no evidence of inconsistency regarding the information stated in audited financial
data of Board of Directors and consolidated financial statements.

Other liabilities arising from legislation

5. In accordance with the third paragraph of Article 402 of Turkish Commercial Code, law number 6102; there was no evidence
that need to be reported about that Vakif Leasing Inc. cannot continue on activities in the foreseeable future within the
framework of BDS 570 "continuity of business".

fstanbul, 1 Mart 2017



Grow your goals with Vakif Leasing.

With 28 years of experience, Vakif Leasing offers leasing advantages in a special and innovative manner,
adding value to your productions and turning your opportunities into profitable.
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

In spite of the negativities in the domestic and foreign markets, the Turkish economy has grown continuously in the
second half of the year 2016, 27 quarters of which have been positively separated from other developing countries.
The Turkish economy, which grew by 2.5 times the developing countries except China and India with 3.9% growth in
the first half of 2016 with the support of domestic demand, the 15 July coup attempt in the second half of 2016,
tourism contraction, terrorist attacks and weak foreign demand By 1.8%.

In spite of the negativities in the domestic and foreign markets, the
Turkish economy has grown continuously in the second half of the year
2016, 27 quarters of which have been positively separated from other
developing countries. The Turkish economy, which grew by 2.5 times the
developing countries except China and India with 3.9% growth in the first
half of 2016 with the support of domestic demand, the 15 July coup
attempt in the second half of 2016, tourism contraction, terrorist attacks
and weak foreign demand By 1.8%.

In this conjuncture, the financial leasing sector, which has been in our
financial system since about 30 years and has contributed significantly to
the development of our country's economy, especially SMEs, by mediat-
ing fixed assets investment of every size enterprise from its foundation,
realized USD 6.1 billion transaction volume, Production and investment
directly by financing the foundation of our economy has created one of
the basic feet.

The financial leasing sector continues to finance real economies in 2016
despite the many negative impacts that continue to exist in the global
economy and our country's geography, and continues to be a permanent
support for growth through strong economic policies implemented in
Turkey.

The legal regulations introduced in the last few years with significant
steps taken in the last few years have contributed to economic stability
by positively influencing the development of the sector in the financial
leasing sector, in which seven of every ten customers are SMEs and the
penetration rate of the sector is 6.8%.

Vakif Leasing
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Established in 1988 under the leadership of Vakifbank, our Company
will continue to contribute to the strengthening of the Turkish econo-
my by using the confidence and experience of being the first actors of
the sector.

Having responded to the capital investment demands of our
country's economy, our Company continues to play an active role in
production and employment, mediating investments in small and
medium-sized enterprises, especially those with limited access to
resources.

Our company will continue to contribute to the strengthening of the
Turkish economy and to be one of the important financial actors of
our country, by maintaining its predictive approach to development
without compromising its service understanding in 2017 with its
strong equity structure and partners.

On behalf of our Board of Directors, | would like to thank our custom-
ers, shareholders, economic and social stakeholders for their support
and | wish all of our employees a strong performance and self-sacri-
fice.

Best Regards,

KSAC
Chairman of the Board
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MESSAGE OF THE DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER
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Vakifleasing founded by Main shareholder Vakifbank in 1988, continues
to contribute to the economy of our country with its strong financial
structure and customer-focused service understanding. In 2016,
Vakifleasing continued its activity in the sector by taking advantage of the
dynamism and power it acquired from Vakifbank.

In the financial leasing sector, one of the most important actors of the
non-banking financial sector, our company continued to rely on its
shareholders in the direction of sustainable growth strategy without
compromising its asset quality by using its resources in line with the
needs of economic development.

In addition to providing current customer loyalty and loyalty, our compa-
ny has added a large number of new customers to its portfolio in 2016
and has adapted to the conditions in the competitive market. Our
dominant shareholder Vakifbank has been involved in SMEs and project
financing primarily through its synergy with more than 900 branch
networks, adhering to its growth strategy.

Vakif Leasing
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Vakifleasing founded by Main shareholder Vakifbank in
1988, continues to contribute to the economy of our
country with its strong financial structure and customer-
focused service understanding. In 2016, Vakifleasing
continued its activity in the sector by taking advantage of
the dynamism and power it acquired from Vakifbank.

In spite of the ongoing problems in the world economy and treacher-
ous coup attempts and terrorist incidents in our country, in 2016, the
total assets of our Company increased by 12% compared to the
previous year to TL 1.7 billion and financial leasing receivables
increased by 16% , Its own resources reached 170 million TL with an
increase of 18% and achieved a net profit of TL 23.3 million as a result
of the year of successful operations by holding the preliminary plan
for the profitability required for healthy growth.

Our primary goal in 2017 is to strengthen our market share in the
sector together with effective risk management by diversifying fund
resources that we have achieved with a contemporary and custom-
er-based approach that focuses on success as in past years and has a
conscious understanding of responsibility.

We would like to thank our colleagues who have a great deal of effort
in this achievement table and our customers who have confidence in
us and wish to reach even greater success together with each passing
year while presenting our activity reports and financial statements
for the year 2016, | wish the year will add value to our country's
economy, sector, and our company.

Best Regards,
—
Ozglir SELGUK

Member of Corporate Governance Committee
Deputy General Manager
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MEMBER OF THE BOARDS
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Alper ERSOY Prof.Dr.Siikrii KARATEPE Ozgiir SELCUK Seref AKSAC Yakup SIMSEK Telat KARAPINAR ibrahim Halil CiFTCI

Member of the Member of the Deputy Chairman of the Member of the Member of the Member of the
Board Board General Manager Board Board, Deputy Chairman Board Board
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EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS AND 2 O ‘ é
THEIR PERSONEL BACKGROUND V

(01.04.2015 - ...)

He was born in Bayburt in 1956. He graduated Istanbul Academy of Economics and
Commercial Sciences, Faculty of Political Sciences, Department of Public Administration in
1979. Starting his professional career in 1982 as a Deputy Inspector at T.C. Ziraat Bankasi A.S.,
Aksag¢ was promoted to become an Inspector in 1986. He performed duties as Istanbul Branch
Deputy Manager between 1990 and 1993 and as a Manager in various branches of the Bank
from 1993 to 2003. He was assigned as the Vice General Manager Responsible for Human
Resources between 2003 and 2005. In addition to these positions, he worked as the member of
Board of Supervisors at Basak Sigorta and of Board of Directors at Tiirkmen Turkish Joint-Stock
Commercial Bank and Ziraat Yatirim ve Menkul Degerler. While Aksag held a position at Ziraat
2 Hayat ve Emeklilik A.S. as Sales and Marketing Vice General Manager and Deputy General

Manager in August 2012, he was assigned as the General Manager of Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik
Seref AK SAC A.S. as of March 2013. He is married and a father of one. On 30.04.1014 he was elected as the

Member of Board of Directors at the Extraordinary General Meeting of T. Vakiflar Bankasi
TA.O. Also performing a duty as a Member of Credit Committee and the Committee of
Accounting at TVakiflar Bankasi T.A.O., Seref AKSAC has preserved its position as the Board
Chairman of our Company since 01.04.2015 and has been working as the Vice President of the
Board at Vakif Emeklilik A.S.

Chairman of the Board

(09.09.2016 - ...)

He was born in Diyarbakir Kulp in 1970. Yakup Simsek graduated from Ankara University,
Faculty of Political Sciences, Department of Business Administration in 1992. He started his
banking career in 1996 as assistant inspector at T. Vakiflar Bankasi TA.O., where he held
positions of Istanbul Regional Commercial Credits Directorate, Head Office Commercial Credits
1 Directorate, Inspection Board Presidency, Eastern Anatolia Region Directorate, Southeastern
1 [ Anatolia Regional Directorate and Cash Management Transactions Presidency. Between 2006
. | and 2008, Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. Simsek served as a Member of the Board of Directors of
. Vakif Factoring and Credit Registry Bureau as a Member of the General Directorate and Board
= of Directors and as a Member of the Board of Directors of Vakif Portfolio between March 2015

Yakup SIMSE K and August 2016. As of 25.08.2016, Yakup Simsek was appointed as Assistant General
. Manager. He is married with two children and speaks English. Yakup SIMSEK has been the

WU G RUELESEIBEIRAREIRMENY Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors since 09.09.2016.

(12.04.2016 - ...)

He was born in Izmir in 1978. Alper ERSOY is a graduate of ITU Department of Business
Engineering in 2000. TVakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. Alper ERSOY, who started as "Assistant Inspector”
in the Chairmanship of the Board of Inspectors, respectively, is a member of TVakiflar Bankasi
T.A.O. Deputy Director at the Validesultan Branch, Head of Product Management at the
General Directorate, Directorate of Agricultural Credits. He is still serving as VakifBank-
Individual and SME Credits President. He is married and has one child. He speaks English. It has
5 the SMIMM document. Alper ERSOY, who has been a member of the Board of Directors since
‘ ‘ 12.04.2016, is also a member of the Corporate Governance Committee and Riskin Early

Detection Committee.
Alper ERSOY

Member of the Board

(29.03.2012 - ...)

Graduating from Ankara Faculty of Law in 1973, Siikrii KARATEPE became a Doctor of Adminis-
trative Law in 1983, Associate Professor of Constitution in 1989 and a Professor in 2012. He
worked as a Council Member of Faculty of Economic and Administrative Sciences and Head of
the Department of Public Administration at Ege University, Kayseri Metropolitan Municipality
Mayor, Chairman of the Board of Electricity Corporation Of Kayseri and Surroundings, Member
of Board of Supervisors at the companies affiliated to Erdemir Group and Board Member at
Vakif Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S. Elected as the Board Member of Vakif Yatinm Menkul
Degerler A.S. on March 29, 2012, Siikrii KARATEPE is a Member at the Committee of
Supervisors. Additionally, Stikrii KARATEPE currently works as the Senior Advisor to the
Prof.Dr.Siikrii KARATEPE President.

Member of the Board
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THEIR PERSONEL BACKGROUND

(29.03.2012 - ...)

ibrahim Halil CIFTCI who gratuated from the department of Business Administration, Middle
East Technical University, was respectively the auditor in the comitee of inspector of Is Bankasi
in between 1974-2001, the vice director of 2nd Credits Regional Directoire, the director of 2nd
Credits Regional D/rectOIre the regional director of Istanbul, the director of Taksim branch and

Galata branch. Between 1987 and 2008, CiFTCI was a member of the executive boards of
Trakya Iplik San. A.S., Man Motor San. A. 5 Topkapi Sise Cam Cam San. A.S, Anadolu Cam San.

A.S., Anadolu Sigorta A.S., Sisecam Fabrikalari A.S., is Girisim A.S. and is Factoring A.S. . ibrahim

u Halil CIFTCI was the general director of Is Finansal Kiralama A.S. between 2001-2009 and the

. i i vice chairm;)m of the execugve board cg‘ Fin)gnc;'{a}lc Leasing/Asso/ciat‘ion in between 2004 a/nd
H H 2009. He who was appointed as a member of Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S in 29.03.2013, is also
Ibrahim Halil CI FTCI the member of the Corporate Governance Board and the Early Detection of Risk Committee.

Member of the Board Halil ibrahim CIFTCI is the vice president of Economic Research Foundation and the member of

the executive board of Istanbul Universitesi Teknokent A.S.

(30.04.2012 - ...)

Telat KARAPINAR who gratuated from the faculty of law, Istanbul University in 1992, was
self-employed lawyer in between 1994-2002. Telat KARAPINAR who was the deputy in 22nd
period of the Grand National Assembly of Turkey, has been being a member of the executive
board of Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. since 16.04.2014.

Telat KARAPINAR

Member of the Board

(05.08.2016 - ...)

Ozgiir SELCUK, who started his professional career as an Assistant Inspector at the Board of
Inspectors of the Turkish Commercial Bank in 1991, served as Assistant Manager and Group
Manager at the same Bank as Inspector and General Directorate of Loans. In November 1997,
he started to work as the Head of the Credits at our Company and was appointed to the
Assistant General Manager in January 2003. Since 05.08.2016 Ozgiir SELCUK has been working
as Deputy General Manager in our company and graduated from METU Department of
Economics.

Ozgiir SELCUK

Member of the Board - Deputy General Manager

Vakif Leasing
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THE MANAGEMENT

Ozgiir SELCUK

Deputy General Manager /
Assistant General Manager

Mehmet ilkay COSKUN

Group Manager

Tolga AKOCAK
Marketing Manager

Ahmet Erdogan
NEHROZOGLU

Ankara Branch Manager

Bora KIRGIZ

izmir Branch Manager

Cengiz KURT

Finance Manager

Sadik Caglar KAYNAK

Internal Control Manager

Yilmaz Arslan AYDIN
Group Manager

Gonca YADIGAR
Marketing Manager

Ferruh ATALAY

Adana Branch Manager

Murat KURTTAS

Antalya Branch Manager

Mustafa SARITAS

Information Technology Manager

Emre AYDEDE

Group Manager

Mustafa COLAK
Marketing Manager

Levent DEMIRCi

Bursa Branch Manager

Melda AKGUN

Insurance and Operations Manager

Hiilya YILDIRIM
Asset and Risk Management M:

[ Vakif Leasing
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GENERAL INFORMATION e
REGARDING COMPANY
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@ Date of Establishment 15/09/1988
® Activity Area Financial Leasing
® Company Headquarters istanbul
® Paid in Capital 87.000TL
® Number of Employees 54
® Board Chairman Seref AKSAC
® General Manager Deputy Ozgiir SELCUK
@ Independent Auditing Firm Basaran Nas Independent Auditor and independent
Accountant Public Accountant Inc.
® Address - Corporate Headquarters Biiyiikdere Av. Matbuat Street Gazeteciler Site No: 13 Esentepe/Sisli/istanbul
® Telephone 490 (212) 337 67 67 - (Santral)
® Trade Registry Number 248616
® Fax 4+90(212) 3376799
Website www.vakifleasing.com.tr

AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

® Vakif Insurance Intermediary Services Ltd.
@ Vakif Factoring Services Inc.

® \akif Marketing Ind. and Trade Inc.

@ \Vakif Energy and Mining Inc.

® Dogu Investment Holding Inc.

@ Vakif Investment Securities, Inc.

® World Vakif UBB. Co. Ltd. (In liquidation)

PARTNERSHIP STRUCTURE

% Bin TL
o T.Vakiflar Bankasi TAO % 58,71 (51,080
® Giines Insurance Inc. % 15,65 |13,615 %
(0]
o T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. % 2,06 |1,794 1 5’75
Employees and Serv.
Retirement Fund Provident
Fund Fondation
e VakifBank Staff Private % 1,04 904
Social Security Services Foundation
e Public Offering % 22,54 | 19,607
Total % 100,00 87,000

Vakif Leasing
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CORPORATE IDENTITY- History / Milestones

Vakif Leasing was established on 15 September, 1988
under the title of VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S. as a
subsidiary of Vakifbank. It was quoted on Istanbul Stock
Market in 1991 and became the first publicly-traded
leasing company.

Having successfully operated for 28 years, Vakif Leasing
continues to be one of the assets of Turkey by
contributing economic and employment growth.
Providing advantage in leasing to its investors due to its
deterministic, assured and progressive approach, Vakif

Vdkif Leasing has reached
an asset size of TRY
1,686,534 Thousand and

. . . t profit of TRY
Leasing takes firm steps towards the future by help of its zg,ezzfzzr OTJZ OZ); and.
experience in making right decisions at right time.

Vakif Leasing has a wide range of expertise, especially in

investments of real estate, energy, technology, transport

and tourism. Vakif Leasing

reached at

The most remarkable indicator of the innovative 289,848 USD

approach of Vakif Leasing is that it is the first company endor. Se;;’;t

providing leasing services to sectors like aircraft, e

aviation; or wind energy.

Vakif Leasing has branches in Ankara, Adana, Izmir and

Bursa and carries on its extensive operations by

providing service with its almost 900 Vakifbank branches Vakif Leasing

all over the country, and with its broad customer was the first

portfolio and service network. leasing public
Vakif Leasing

was established

’ [’4° Vakif Leasing
2&2 Size Dogru Gelecek
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2 O ‘ é CORPORATE IDENTITY - Our Vision - Our Mission
V Our Values - Our Codes of Conduct

/4

To be a Leader Company, which is the first choice of

investors in the Leasing sector by providing the optimal

financial opportunities in customer investments; and

which aims for utmost customer satisfactign and |
service quality.

v >

F 4 /
To create continuous value for our customers, empl;
ees and shareholders by development of a succe ul,
modern and customer-oriented approach. /

/4

High-quality service based on information and creativity; .
Rapid and effective decision-making;

A strong sense of responsibility on a long lasting
development approach

Open communication based on mutual trust,
Employees who devoted to success and team spirit,

Commitment to ethical and professional codes of conduct

/4

High-quadlity service based on information and creativity;
Rapid and effective decision-making;

A strong sense of responsibility on a long lasting
development approach

Open communication based on mutual trust,
Employees who devoted to success and team spirit,

Commitment to ethical and professional codes of conduct

Vakif Leasing
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VAKIF FINANCIAL LEASING INC. CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE REPORT

CHAPTER | — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. ("Vakif Leasing" or "Company") is
affiliated to the corporate governance guidelines designated in
accordance with the Law on Financial leasing, Factoring and
Financing Companies, capital market legislations and Turkish
Commercial Code and relevant regulations to regulate the estab-
lishment and operating principles of and related regulations, and
pays utmost attention to the implementation of these principles.
It has adopted concepts of equality, transparency, accountability,
and responsibility of Corporate Governance Principles ("Princi-
ples") published by Capital Market Board ("CMB").

The company is in concordance with the following principles of
Corporate Governance Principles included in Communiqué on
Corporate Governance No. II-17.1, published in the Official
Gazette No. 28871 dated 3 January, 2014:

a-) Company fully complies with following principles:
(1.3.1),(1.3.5.,(1.3.6.),(1.3.9.), (4.2.6.), (4.3.1.), (4.3.2), (4.3.3)),
(43.4),(435.),(436.),(43.7.),(43.8),(4.5.1.),(45.2), (45.3.),
(45.4.),(4.59.),(4.5.10.), (4.5.11.), (4.5. 12), (4.5.13.), (4.6.2.) and
(4.6.3.).

Duty, authorization and responsibility of "Directorate of Investor
Relations", which performs operations as the Directorate of
Financial Affairs and Investor Affairs, were revised in accordance
with framework stated in Article 11 of Communiqué on Corpo-
rate Governance and thereby ensured full compliance with the
relevant legislation.

b-) About non-mandatory principles;

There are no female members in the Board of Directors of the
Company. Neither target time nor ratio has been determined for
the existence rate of females within Board of Directors. Therefore,
compliance with the advisory principle 4.3.9 is out of question.
There has been no conflict of interest among stakeholders up to
now due to nonfulfillment of the mentioned principle.

CHAPTER Il - STAKEHOLDERS
2.1 Investor Relations Chapter

Directorate of Investor Relations operates under Deputy General
Manager Ozgiir SELCUK, for performance of tasks of Directorate
of Investor Relations as part of the Directorate of Financial Affairs
and Investor Relations.

Directorate of Financial Affairs and Investor Relations, which
manages relationships with institutional investors, rating
agencies, and shareholders, makes presentation of execution of
all activities to the Board, in addition to presentation of compara-
tive financial analysis with competitors quarterly.

2016 48

The license of section manager is as shown below;
IName/Surname

License
(Ozgir SELCUK Deputy General Manager Corporate Governance Rating

Serves as a member of the Corporate Governance Committee in accordance to paragraph 2 of Article 11 of Communiqué
lon Corporate Governance.

Staff involved to carry out tasks of Directorate of Investor
Relations within Directorate of Financial Affairs and Investor
Relations is as shown below;

Name - Surname Phone Number
Ozgir Deputy 0212 337 67 67 O.SELCUK@vakifleasing.com.tr
SELGUK General Manager
Mehmet ilkay Group Manager 0212 337 67 67 1.COSKUN@vakifleasing.com.tr
COSKUN
Asli KEKEC Coordinator 0212 337 67 67 A KEKEC@vakifleasing.com.tr
Neslihan Specialist 0212 337 67 67 N.YILDIZLI@vakifleasing.com.tr
YILDIZLI
Fatma - 0212 337 67 67 F.HAFIZOGLU@vakifleasing.com.tr

o Specialist

HAFIZOGLU

Main duties and responsibilities of Directorate of Investor
Relations are as follows;

- Ensure to keep records of the shareholders safe and current,

- Respond to written requests of shareholders regarding the
company, excluding publicly undisclosed, confidential informa-
tion and trade secrets related to the Company,

- Ensure that the General Assembly meetings are held in accord-
ance with the standing legislation; Articles of Association or other
internal arrangements,

- Issue necessary documents for shareholders to make use of
during the General Assembly,

- Ensure that voting records are kept and reports regarding the
results are sent to shareholders,

- Supervise and monitor any kind issues regarding public disclo-
sure, including legislation and the company's disclosure policy.

During 2016 Directorate of Investor Relations;

-organized that the Ordinary General Meeting in 2015 was held
according to scope and method required by the Relevant Law,
Capital Market Law, Communiqué on Corporate Governance,
Articles of Association and other legislations.

Vakif Leasing
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2.2 Utilization of Shareholders’ Right to Information

Questions addressed to the Department of Investor Relations by
shareholders are first consulted to top authority on the matter
and then are responded ether written or by call, except for
confidential information and trade secrets regarding the Compa-

ny.

In 2016, no information requests are delivered to the Investor
Relations Department while questions asked on call were replied
as required. Information and developments concerning share-
holders, regarding Company, such as stock transactions, capital
increase, dividend taking operations, general meeting, financial
reports, disclosures or etc. are regularly transmitted to the parties
either by website, by phone or via mail. In addition, the status of
stocks of domestic shareholders in operating cycle, information
requests on share transactions after conversion of existing shares
or death of a shareholder are sent, if requested in written
form.On the other hand, request for the appointment of a special
auditor is not regulated as an individual right in the Articles of
Association and no such demand was made during the
concerned activity period.

2.3 General Assembly Meetings

General Assembly Meeting on the 2015 activity period of our
Company was held at the head office, on April 1, 2015, with the
participation by shareholder representatives, the Commissioner
from the Ministry of Customs and Trade, and holders of 77.62%
of total shares.

Company held the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting in 2016
in accordance with the provisions of "Regulations on the General
Assembly to be held in Electronic Media in Incorporated Compa-
ny" and "Communiqué on General Assembly System to be
applied in the General Assembly of Incorporated Company".
Thus, stakeholders had the opportunity to participate in the
General Assembly meetings electronically, to make suggestions,
to declare their views and to vote.

In order to inform the shareholder, letter of invitation, agenda,
sample of power of attorney and information required for voting
in the General Assembly were announced to public prior to
General Assembly meetings, via Public Disclosure Platform,
Turkey Trade Registry Gazette and at least two daily newspapers
that are published throughout Turkey in accordance with relevant
legislations; besides, these documents were also published on
the website of Company. The calls for e-General Assembly, which
allows participation through electronic media, and which gives
possibility to make recommendations;

VAKIF LERSING
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VAKIF FINANCIAL LEASING INC. CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE REPORT

to announce views or to vote in General Assembly Meeting of
Company, are made through CRA system at least 21 days before,
excluding days of meetings. In addition, such documents are sent
via mail to registered current addresses of shareholders.

Bank Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Statement, Board of Direc-
tors' Annual Report, Auditor's Report of fiscal year 2014 and
Report of the Independent External Auditors were issued before
General Assembly and are available for surveillance of our share-
holders before meeting, in Company's Headquarters or on CRA
system. In addition, letter of invitation, agenda and samples of
power of attorney for the General Assembly might be obtained
upon request of the stakeholders. Those shareholders, who have
right to attend the General Assembly, and who fulfilled required
procedures for participation, attended the Annual General Meet-
ingin 2016.

On announcement and invitation letters issued prior to the
General Assembly:

- Date, time and place of the meeting,

- Agenda of the meeting,

- By which state body it is held (Company Board of Directors),

- Annual Report and addresses where balance, profit and loss
statements will be presented for examination by partners
(General Directorate) for ordinary meeting announcements,

- samples of power of attorney for those unable to attend the
meeting themselves are announced.

Activity Report included documents, such as Company activities,
information of executives, company balance sheets, balance
sheet footnotes, Independent Auditors' Report, or Report on
Compliance with Corporate Governance Principles. Activity
Report is presented to shareholders upon request of Directorate
of Investor Relations, before or after General Assembly.

Regardless their share, all shareholders have the right to take the
floor, to express their opinion and to ask questions regarding
issues of agenda during Ordinary General Assembly. The
questions of shareholders, who participated Ordinary General
Assembly meeting on April 12, 2016, either physically or electron-
ically; their requests and thoughts; the answers of Chairman of
the meeting and Council Board were recorded as minutes
throughout General Assembly Meeting. General Assembly meet-
ing minutes and attachments were delivered to shareholders and
were announced to the public by Public Disclosure Platform,
Turkey Trade Registry Gazette, and e-Company Information
Portal and e-General Assembly Electronics General Assembly
System in accordance with relevant legislation after the General
Assembly, and also were posted on the website of the Company.

Since approval of majority of independent Board Members were
not achieved, in 2016, the decision by the General Assembly was
not required.
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In accordance with the last topic of the agenda, shareholders and
other invitees used their right o ask questions, after receiving
satisfying responses by company managers in return, they
expressed their good wishes.

There exists no relevance, which may cause a conflict of interest,
between shareholders, Board Members, Administrative Manag-
ers or their spouses, blood relatives or second-degree relatives
with Company or its subsidiaries. In addition, it is clearly under-
stood that certain party did not transact a commercial business in
operation field neither on their own nor on someone else’s
account and that they did not carry out any transaction with
another shareholder in terms of unlimited partnership dealing
with the same type of commercial business.

In accordance with the last topic of the agenda, shareholders and
other invitees used their right o ask questions, after receiving
satisfying responses by company managers in return, they
expressed their good wishes.

2.4 Voting and Minority Rights

Provisions relating to voting rights of shareholders and to use of
these rights are described in Articles of Association of Company.

Those, who have or represent ten shares at the General Assem-
bly, have right of one vote. Those, who have more than ten
shares, have right to vote according to a number, which is deter-
mined according to the above ratio without being subject to
restrictions.

No reciprocal shareholding is present within capital of Company.
The use of minority rights is subject to Turkish Commercial Code,
Capital Market Law, relevant legislations; communiqués and
resolutions of CMB.

2.5 Profit Share Right

There exists no privilege regarding participation in profit of The
Company. The profit distribution policy of Company was
redefined according to Capital Market Legislation, provisions of
Turkish Commercial Code, tax legislation and other related
legislation provisions.

Profit distribution proposal of Company's Board of Directors,
which was prepared for submission to the General Assembly for
approval; Any profit distribution proposal made by Board of
Directors for submission of approval of the General Assembly is
prepared in such a way to protect delicate balance between
shareholder expectations; the profitability status of Company
and need for future growth.

Accordingly,“As per Articles of Association, it is agreed to make a
first dividend payment at the rates and amounts specified by the
Capital Markets Board in case of any distributable profit.”

In Articles of Association, there exists no regulation provision
regarding distribution of an advance dividend.

Every year, Board of Directors presents a proposal regarding profit
sharing to General Assembly and to shareholders, together with
activity report prior to the General Assembly. The proposal
regarding profit sharing of the Board of Directors is discussed and
resolved in General Assembly. Decisions taken in 2016 regarding
profit sharing for 2015 were implemented and necessary notifi-
cations were made to the authorities. Relevant decisions were
also announced to public through the Public Disclosure Platform
on the very same day.

2.6 Assignment of Shares

There exists no provision in Articles of Association, which restricts
the assignment of shares. According to Article 7 of Articles of
Association, all Company shares are registered, and might be
assigned in accordance with the provisions of the related legisla-
tion.

CHAPTER IIl - PUBLIC DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
3.1 Corporate Website and Content

You may have access to website of Company, with alternatives in
Turkish or English: www.vakifleasing.com.tr.

Website of Company is compatible with the principles regarding
corporate website of Communiqué on Corporate Governance
(1:17.1) numbered (2.1.1), (2.1.2) and (2.1.3), issued on January 3,
2014, by the CMB.

3.2 Activity Report

Activity Report of the Company is issued in accordance with the
principles regarding annual report of Communiqué on Corporate
Governance (II-17.1), with article number (2.2.1) and (2.2.2),
published on January 3, 2014 by the CMB.

Vakif Leasing
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CHAPTER IV - STAKEHOLDERS
4.1 Informing of Stakeholders

Vakifleasing stakeholders are regularly informed through activity
reports, news and statements on website about issues regarding
stakeholders.

In order to ensure accurate and reliable information flow, the
information disclosed in financial statements, published in every
quarter, are shared with investors through the website; or are
announced in PDP. Any questions or demands of investors are
responded via phone and email.

4.2 Participation Stakeholders' in Management

In our Company, there exists two different models concerning the
contribution of stakeholders to management:

Committee Meeting: Decisions that are taken in regular commit-
tee meetings are implemented by our company.

Proposal System: Via this system, employees have possibility to
submit their recommendations regarding improvement and
development of Company in every respect, and appropriate
recommendations are taken into consideration.

Moreover, in order to inform employees regarding the general
status of the Company and to receive their recommendations,
"Weekly General Assessment Meetings" are organized, where
financial structure and performance data of Company are evalu-
ated with employees.

4.3 Human Resources Policy

Our Human Resources Policy is conducted within the framework
of personnel regulations, which entered in force in 2005. In
addition, we perform career planning and development. Our
company plays a major role in the success and development of
the sector. Vakif Leasing places importance particularly on educa-
tion and thus, provides equipment necessary for efficient opera-
tion to its employees, considering its employees as its major
capital. It works with employees who make researches, and who
have visionary, creative and problem solving qualities.

All employees at our Company have a notion of working with
team spirit and a high level of innovative creativity. In Vakif
Leasing, recruitments and promotions are carried out by
decisions given by Board of Directors within the framework of
Personnel Regulations. There exists no discrimination in any
means among our employees of Company, and our employees
are equal under any circumstance.
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4.4 Ethics and Social Responsibility

e Full compliance with the regulations issued by the law.

e Honesty, transparency and accountability in the relationship
with the customer- seller-creditor.

e Operating by taking into account the grounds of economic
growth, in addition to profitability.

* Respect to confidential information and privacy to keep secrets.
* Respect to common interest of the sector in order not to create
an unfair competition

Vakif Leasing is aware of its social responsibilities towards its
customers, employees and society; and strives for fulfilling these
responsibilities in the best possible way. It obeys all the regula-
tions regarding the business life; stands behind the commitments
it announces to public; gives confidence; encourages its employ-
ees towards honest and ethical conduct; takes all the precautions
necessary for the security of its premises, does not conduct
deceptive promotional or marketing activities; and obeys and
encourages regulations prohibiting discrimination. Vakif Leasing
strives for solving the customer problems quickly, covers the
significant part of its employees’ health expenses and continu-
ously aims for increasing its service quality.

CHAPTER V - BOARD OF DIRECTORS
5.1 Structure and Formation of the Board of Directors

The structure of the Board of Directors is defined as follows
according to Article 8 of Articles of Association:

"The company's operations and management are conducted by
a Board of Directors consisting of at least five members, including
General Manager. Every year, Board of Directors chooses a Chair-
man among the members and a Deputy Chairman to deputize
him in his absence. Chairman of the Board and General Manager
cannot be the same person. All members of Board, excluding
General Manager, are elected by shareholders represented in
General Assembly in accordance with the provisions of the
Turkish Commercial Code. The majority of Board Members are
not responsible from daily activities. Non-ordinary Board Mem-
bers are elected from the candidates who could conduct his/her
work independently without any influence according to Capital
Markets Board. General Manager and Deputy General Manager
are ordinary members of the Board of Directors. General Manag-
er and his Deputy should have a bachelor degree and should be
experienced in finance or business administration for at least
seven years.
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STARTING
DATE OF
THIS
NAME / SURNAME POSITION
Seref AKSAC Chairman of the Board 01/04/2015
Yakup SIMSEK Deputy Chairman of the Board 09/09/2016
Member of the Board 12/04/2016
Alper ERSOY Member of Corporate Governance Committee 09/09/2016
Early Identification of Risk Committee Member 09/09/2016
Sitkrii KARATEPE Independent Memeber of the Board 29/03/2012
Member of the Audit Committee - Chariman 11/04/2012
Telat KARAPINAR Member of the Board 30/04/2012
Member of the Board 29/03/2012
Corporate Governance Committee -
. . . : 11/04/2012
ibrahim Halil CIFTCI Chariman ,
Early Identification of Risk Committee - 30/04/2013
Chairman
Member of the Audit Committee 11/04/2012
Ozgir SELCUK Deputy General Manager 05/08/2016

There exists no executive assignment of Chairman of the Board of Directors. Deputy General Manager Ozgiir SELCUK is
executive member in the Board of Directors.

Personal background of Members of Board of Directors are published in the Activity Report. Pursuant to statement with
serial IV article no. 56 of Corporate Governance Principles of CMB concerning establishment of a Corporate Governance
Committee, election of two independent members is foreseen. Siikrii KARATEPE and ibrahim Halil CIFTCI fulfill require-
ments for being an Independent Member in accordance with articles 4.3.6 and 4.3.7 of Corporate Governance Principles
of CMB. Their declarations of independence corresponding relevant legislation; Articles of Association and relevant
communiqué were presented in report of April 1, 2016 & April 11, 2016. Independent Members were presented to Board
of Directors on April 11, 2016.

No circumstance, which invalidates the declaration of independence of independent members of Board of Directors; or
independence of Members within relevant operating cycle, is encountered.
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Partnerships and tasks of members of Board of
Directors outside company:

NAME / SURNAME
Yakup SIMSEK

POSITION

T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. Assistant General Manager
Head of individual and

SME lenders

Alper ERSOY T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O.

5.2 Activity Principles of Board of Directors

General Assembly regarding activities of the Company is held
either in headquarters of Company; or in a location, where
majority of Board Members request. However, General Assembly
should gather at least once on a monthly basis. Though not
gathered acknowledgedly, presence of all members at the meet-
ing place on a given day and time does not prejudice to the
validity of Assembly. Those who have right to participate in the
General Assembly may participate via an electronic media in
accordance with Article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code.
Company may install a system that allow stakeholders to partici-
pate and to vote through electronic media in accordance with the
provisions of Communiqué on General Assembly; and also may
purchase service from systems formed with this purpose. In
General Assembly to be held, it is ensured that stakeholders use
their rights that are set forth in the relevant legislation within
framework of Communiqué provisions via a system established in
accordance with this provision of Articles of Association or
through a system offering support services. Turkish Commercial
Code shall apply for quorum regarding General Assembly.

The agenda of General Assembly is determined according to
provisions and authority stipulated in the Articles of Association.
30 General Assembly meetings were held between January 1,
2016 and December 31, 2016. General Assembly regarding activi-
ties of Company is held either in headquarters of Company; or in
a location, where majority of Board Members request. However,

General Assembly should gather at least once on a monthly basis.

Turkish Commercial Code shall apply for quorum regarding
General Assembly. The task of informing and communicating
Board Members is carried about by General Manager Secretary.
Decisions taken that need be disclosed to the public are
announced immediately after meeting.
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All members actively take part in meetings held on following
issues:

- Identification of operation fields of Company, approval of
business and financing plans;

- Summoning for Ordinary or Extraordinary General Assembly
and its organization;

- Confirmation of annual report to be submitted in General
Assembly;

- Selection of the Chairman, Deputy Chairman of Board and
appointment of new members;

- Establishment of administrative units or termination of its activi-
ties;

- Appointment or dismissal of the CEO/General Manager;

- Establishment of committees;

- Integration, distribution, reorganization, sale either of Company
or of 10% of shares; or investments for an amount over 10 %,
expenses exceeding 10% of total share;

- Determination of Company's dividend policy, or profit share;

- Capital increase or decrease.

5.3 Number, Structure and Independence of Committees
Formed Within Board of Directors

Establishment of an audit Committee consisting of two members
(President- Siikrii KARATEPE, Member- ibrahim Halil CiFTCI), a
Corporate Management Committee of three members (Presi-
dent - ibrahim Halil CIFTCi, Member — Alper Ersoy, Member -
Ozgur SELCUK) and Early Detection Committee of Risk of two
members (President- ibrahim Halil CIFTCI, Member — Alper Ersoy)
are held in accordance with Communiqué on Corporate Govern-
ance, which requests this establishment in order to fulfill the
duties and responsibilities of General Assembly for publicly
traded companies.

There are six members in our Board of Directors. And Board
Members might be member of more than one committee, since
the number of members of committees related the Board of
Directors are more than the number of members of Board of
Directors, in accordance with principles stated in the CMB Corpo-
rate Governance principles and the BRSA.
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5.4 Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism

- Internal Control:

Internal control mechanism, which is in service directly under the
Board, serves with the objective to perform controls effectively
and to develop a control system that covers risks in all areas, and
to report results periodically to the Audit Committee.

It controls whether Company's operations, systems and process-
es are carried out in accordance with regulations, management
strategies and policies and leasing practices, while carrying out a
systemic and disciplined approach regarding workflows, duties
and responsibilities of employees and taking necessary steps for
risk assessment; or prevention.

While presenting an opinion concerning development of internal
regulations and practices of Company, it provides independent
and objective assurance and consulting services in order to enrich
and improve activities, with an objective to improve Company's
corporate efficacy governance.

In order to prevent the damage that could affect achievement to
Company goals, establishment of an internal control system is
foreseen for defining, evaluation, monitoring, managing of
potential credit, market and operational risks that may affect
Company's assets and for using such results during decision
mechanism.

Internal Control Manager fulfills its duties as Exclusively Compli-
ance Officer, which ensures that necessary measures in compli-
ance with legislation of Financial Crimes Research Board are
taken; realization of supervision and establishment of communi-
cation with Board.

- Risk management:

Risk Management consists of two members elected from Board
of Directors. Directorate of Risk Management carries on its activi-
ties within the framework of national legislation and internation-
al regulations and standards through Members of Committee for
the Early Detection of Risks. Directorate of Risk Management
submits its report periodically to Committee for the Early Identifi-
cation of Risks.

201648

5.5 The Company's Strategic Goals

The strategic goals formed by our managers are evaluated at the
end of each year and targets are approved for following year. In
addition, Board of Directors evaluate achievement to set goals.

5.6 Financial Rights

During Ordinary General Assembly meeting, on April 12, 2016, it
was decided to pay 3,500 TLs monthly to members of Board of
Directors.

There exists no other fee or other rights granted to Members of
Board. Wages and benefits for members of the Board are not
determined by their performance. Company is not insured
against damages caused by a Board Member throughout his duty
term.

Company has not given any loan or credit to any Board member;
or there exists not any warrant or guarantee such as a compensa-
tion is given in benefit of a third party or per a third party given as
a personal debt.

In accordance with Corporate Governance Principles, all other
benefits ensured by fees paid to senior executives in addition to
Members of Board of Directors are disclosed to public through
activity report. However, statement is made not on the basis of a
person, but on the basis of Board of Directors and senior manager
distinction.

Our Company has paid gross wage of 312 thousand TLs to Board
members and 683 thousand TLs to General Manager and Deputy
General Manager in 2016.

Chairm_an of CorpOrate Governance Committee Member of Corporate Governance Committee

Kurumaal Yénetim Komites] Uyesi
Genel Midiir Vekili

Member of Corporate Governance Committee
Deputy General Manager
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DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENCY UNDER SCOPE OF THE
NOTIFICATION ON DETERMINATION AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

&

VAKIF LEASING INC.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE COMMUNIQUE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) I do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty
and responsibilities within the last five years, do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or
privileged shares either jointly or solely or do not have established a significant commercial relation between the
corporation, companies on which the corporation hold control of management or significant effect and share-
holders who hold control of management of the corporation or have significant effect in the corporation and
legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my relatives
by blood or marriage up to second degree,

b) have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant
duty and responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the corpo-
ration purchases or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed,
especially on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the corporation,
at the time period when the corporation purchases or sells services or goods,

c) have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an
independent board member,

¢) will not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being elected, except
being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) l am residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193,

e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in
conflicts of interests between the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional
reputation and experience to freely take decisions by considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation
and duly fulfill the allocated duties,

g) | have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years,
from Board of Directors.

h) | am not the independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such;
the corporation or the controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corpo-
rations and in more than five corporations in total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

i) I have not been registered and announced as a board member representing a legal entity.

In case of the emergence of a condition violating this independence, | will immediately inform the board of
directors for the change to be declared to the public by me and | will resign from my duties as the member of
board of directors and others as the principle requires since | will lose independence under such circumstance.

01.04.2016 H

ibrahim Haill

Independent Member of
Board of Directors
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VAKIF LEASING INC.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE COMMUNIQUE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) | do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty
and responsibilities within the last five years, do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or
privileged shares either jointly or solely or do not have established a significant commercial relation between the
corporation, companies on which the corporation hold control of management or significant effect and share-
holders who hold control of management of the corporation or have significant effect in the corporation and
legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my relatives
by blood or marriage up to second degree,

b) have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant
duty and responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the corpo-
ration purchases or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed,
especially on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the corporation,
at the time period when the corporation purchases or sells services or goods,

c) have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an
independent board member,

¢) will not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being elected, except
being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) I am residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193,

e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in
conflicts of interests between the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional
reputation and experience to freely take decisions by considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation
and duly fulfill the allocated duties,

g) | have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years,
from Board of Directors.

h) I am not the independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such;
the corporation or the controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corpo-
rations and in more than five corporations in total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

i) I have not been registered and announced as a board member representing a legal entity.

In case of the emergence of a condition violating this independence, | will immediately inform the board of
directors for the change to be declared to the public by me and | will resign from my duties as the member of
board of directors and others as the principle requires since | will lose independence under such circumstance.
11.04.2016

" Br. 50 TEPE
Bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu Oyesi

Independent Member of
Board of Directors
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AFFILIATION REPORT - 2016

The Affiliation Report Prepared As Per Article 199 of Turkish Commercial Code

As per article 199 of Turkish Commercial Code no 6102, which was enforced in 1 July, 2012, the report on relations of Vakif Financial
Leasing Inc. and its controlling shareholder TVakiflar Bankasi T.A.O., and affiliated partnerships for the previous year of operation has been
compiled. Under frame of the information presented to our Board of Director, it has been concluded that in all the transaction conducted
between Vakif Financial Leasing Inc., and with its controlling shareholder in and affiliated companies in 2016, pursuant to the conditions
and terms being known to us by the time of transaction was made, or measure was taken or refrained to be taken, a proper counter action
was performed in all transaction and that there is no measures taken or refrained to be taken, which could damage the company and thus,
there has been no transaction or measure which may be required offsetting under this frame.
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BRIEFING ON OTHER ISSUES V BO ‘ 6 ‘

EXPLANATIONS ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (lI-17.1)

-In 2016, the Company has increased its paid-in capital from 65,000 Thousand TL to 87,000 Thousand TL. The amount raised is met
from the year 2015. The Company has obtained permission from the Capital Markets Board regarding the increase of the registered
capital ceiling to 300,000 Thousand TL in 2016. With the partnership structure in 2016, there has been no change in the organization-
al scheme.

- There is no research and development activity in 2016.

- During the accounting period of 2016, PwC Independent Audit and Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik A.S. Limited independent
auditing on 30.06.2016 and independent auditing on 31.12.2016. In addition to this, within the framework of the full taxation of
corporations, the company financial statements are prepared by NSR Yeminli Mali Misavirlik A.S. Through tax audits on a quarterly
basis.

- There are no legal proceedings in any ongoing lawsuit against the Company that may have a negative effect on the Company's finan-
cial position and results of operations.

- There are no administrative and judicial sanctions imposed on the members of the company and the management body due to
practices contrary to the provisions of the legislation.

- No extraordinary general assembly meeting was held during the year.
- The company does not have its own shares acquired.

- Vakif Leasing's gross receipts decreased by 10,10% compared to the previous year in 2016 and decreased from 250,894 thousand
USD to 225,545 thousand USD. 412 transactions in 2015 were realized as 502 transactions in 2016 with an increase of 21.84%.

According to the contract information activated by Vakif Leasing, the transaction amount of USD 222,675 thousand in 2015
decreased by 8,57% in 2016 and realized as USD 203,589 thousand. While the number of active contracts was 388 in 2015, it
increased by 25.77% to 488 in 2016.

While aiming to grow disciplinedly, the Company did not compromise on the strategy of creating a high quality portfolio and the
prevalence of the transaction volume it realized while acting selective in growth in order to manage the increasing profit margin
pressure efficiently and balancedly.

- As of the end of 2016, the paid-in capital of the Company is TL 87 million and there are no findings or opinions regarding the capital
being unrequited and the Company being plundered.
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2016 GLOBAL ECONOMY IN THE WORLD AND TURKEY

2016 48

Japan and the European Central Bank expanding money

GLOBAL ECONOMY

Moderate growth in global economy continues
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The global economy, which grew by 3.2% in 2015, is expected to
finish 2016 with a growth of 3.1% compared to the IMF expecta-
tion. At the beginning of the developed economies, the US
economy grew by 3.5% in the third quarter of 2016. Thus, while
the US economy has achieved the fastest growth in the last two
years, the increase in consumer and public spending has been
influential in this performance. The 4th quarter growth in the US
economy is expected to be 2.2% below the high 3rd quarter
growth rate and close the year with 1.6% growth. The US is
expected to complete the year 2017 with a growth rate of 2.2%
with the support of expansionary fiscal policies expected to be
implemented by new president Trump. Euro Zone's growth of
0.3% in the third quarter indicated that the economic activity in
the region has a relatively positive outlook despite Brexit's
decision. Political uncertainties in the Eurozone that are expected
to finish 2016 with a growth rate of 1.7% in the upcoming period
and the policies implemented by new president Trump in the US
are likely to put pressure on the growth of the regional economy,
which is growing with exports, and it is expected to finish 2017
with a growth rate of 1.5% . The Japanese economy, on the other
hand, posted a 0.3% growth in the third quarter, slightly below
expectations. The Chinese economy, which has a very important
place in the growth performance of the global economy, showed
that economic activity remained stable in the third quarter, grow-
ing by 6.7%, just like the other two quarters. The Chinese econo-
my is expected to finish 2016 with a growth rate of 6.6%. In 2017,
US President Trump's anticipated tariff tariffs and protectionist
trade policies for countries like China and Mexico are expected to
complete with growth of 6.2%, which is relatively low compared
to 2016, with adverse effects on China, which has an important
role in the economy of exports. On the other hand, the OECD's
global economic outlook released earlier forecasted a 3% global
growth rate for 2016, down to 2.9% and a 2013 growth rate of
3.3%.

US Central Bank tightens while
Continued to monitor monetary policy.

Central Bank Balance Sheet Size
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Following the global crisis, expanding monetary policies have
generally been applied to developed economies such as the US,
Europe and Japan. In 2014 and 2015, the monetary policies of
developed country central banks began to be diverged. The US
Federal Reserve (Fed) has announced its decision to terminate
the third quantitative easing program (QE3), which was
launched in September 2012, in May 2013, and concluded on
October 29, 2014. In December 2015, the Fed made a decision
to increase interest rates for the first time after about 10 years.
The Fed raised the policy interest rate by 0.25 percentage points
t00,25% -0,50% band from 0% -0.25% band. Speaking after the
meeting, Fed Chairman Janet Yellen said that four interest rates
could increase in 2016. However, in 2016, the Fed has only
made one interest rate increase, at the last meeting of the year.
Fed Chairman Yellen, who has raised the interest rate by 0.25
percentage point at the December meeting, said that he
revised the interest rate increase expectation of 2, which was
previously 2 for 2017, to 3. In addition, Yellen added that the
gradual increase in interest rates will continue. In 2017, the
most widely spoken Central Bank is expected to be the Fed.
However, it should be said that the final decisions of the Fed will
be effective in the policies of other Central Banks. Also, the
misguided policies of the new US president Trump, scheduled
for follow-up on January 20th, will have an impact on the Fed's
decisions. In this context, the manner in which the Fed, which is
beginning to tighten its monetary tightening, will follow closely
in terms of both the US economy and the global economy.
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The European Central Bank (ECB) is continuing its expansionary
monetary policy to support economic activity. The ECB, which
was the first to apply negative interest in June 2014, reduced the
deposit rate, which was already in the negative territory and
applied to the banks at the March 2016 meeting, by 10 basis
points to 0.40%. The ECB also reduces the size of its securities
purchase program, which aims to reduce the borrowing costs
and support the economy, from 60 billion euro to 80 billion euro.
Speaking after the meeting, ECB President Mario Draghi
announced that the ECB will buy bonds until March 2017. At the
last meeting of December 2016, the ECB decided to keep the
interest rate constant while the asset purchasing amount, which
was 80 billion euro, will continue at the same level until March
2017, and purchases continuing until December 2017 will be 60
billion euro To the level. It will be followed curiously by 2017 if the
ECB, which has already begun to reduce the amount of asset
purchases, regards the policy as partial tightening, if it will abolish
the monetary expansion in 2017.

In Japan, where deflationary pressures continue, the Bank of
Japan (BoJ) has announced that it will continue to implement its
expanding monetary policy until it reaches the inflation level of
2%. At the beginning of the year, BoJ unexpectedly pulled the
interest rate to a negative level for the accounts the banks held at
the central bank in January meeting. BoJ announced at its meet-
ing on September 21 that it decided to control the yield curve by
changing the frame of the monetary policy, as well as continuing
the qualitative and quantitative monetary expansion program.
BoJ said that the target could be reached in 2018 by shifting the
forecast timing to reach the inflation target at the November
meeting. It is expected that BoJ will continue its expansionist
policy in 2017, stating that it will use asset purchases to control
long-term Treasury interest rates by giving up its monetary base
target. The Japanese government, which is currently buying
bonds, is thought to have a debt ratio of over 200%, and the fact
that the desired correction in the economy has not been
achieved despite bond purchases that have been going on for a
long time creates uneasiness on investors. An increase in the rate
of interest, which is close to 0%, may cause the government to be
nervous about the ability to pay debts. However, the fact that the
majority of the country's debtors, especially pension funds, are in
the hands of the domestic investor, can be considered as a factor
to reduce the worries about the country risk.

The volatility in the financial markets that began in China at the
beginning of the year and the depreciation of the Chinese curren-
cy also increased the risk perception in global markets. The
Chinese economy has had the lowest growth performance since
1990 with 5.9% growth in 2015.
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In the third quarter of 2016, China's economy grew by 6.7%,
boosting expectations for the government's annual growth
target. At the end of the year, however, the Bank of China's
(PBOC) tightening monetary conditions to reduce collateral and
protect local currency also contributed to the increased
pressure on the market. China's reserves, which declined by
about S 600 billion to $ 3.3 trillion from S 3.9 trillion in 2015,
continued to decline in 2016 as well. While China's foreign
exchange reserves are the world's largest, they have gone to the
PBOC foreign exchange reserves in order to stop some of the
hard losses experienced in the Yuan, which had fallen to the
lowest level of the last five years in January 2016 due to the
sharp increases in overnight interest rates in China. A situation
similar to that experienced at the beginning of the year took
place at the end of 2016, and concerns about the use of the
Central Bank's reserves have come to the fore again. In 2017,
the pressure on the Chinese currency and hence on the already
dangerous Chinese reserves may increase. However, it should
not be forgotten that in 2016 the possible scenario will be left at
a significant point in the current situation in the face of a
possible new reserve. In the period when Yuan depreciated
sharply in 2016 and the Chinese dollar reserves were soon
overtaken by a significant amount, the Fed was slow to raise
interest rates, considering global conditions. However, as the
new President Trump's plans to implement the measure in the
US on January 20, 2017, the Fed will not be able to raise such
low interest rates and thus the appreciation of the dollar will
gain even more, worries over China's reserves about the
upcoming turnaround.

Although inflation in the United States has converged to the
Fed's target, other developed country economies continue to
struggle with deflation.
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Developed country economies continued to struggle with the
problem of deflation in 2016. Unlike other countries that imple-
ment expanding monetary policy, the US economy, which started
to follow a tightening monetary policy in 2014, is expected to
approach the inflation rate of 2%, which is the Fed's target level at
year-end at the end of 2015. The Euro Zone inflation rate, which
was realized as 0.2% in 2015, is expected to complete the 2016
year at 0.6%. Despite concerns about the region's deflation, it is
likely that the inflation rate will be more positive in 2016 than in
the previous year. In Japan, inflation is expected to decline by
0.2% at the end of 2016, which ended 2015 with an increase of
0.2%. Thus, the expectation that Japan's annual inflation rate will
be negative for the first time since 2012 indicates that deflation-
ary pressures are still continuing despite the introduction of
negative interest rates in early 2016.

Britain took the decision to leave the EU (Brexit).

Unlike the expectation of the referendum in the UK on 23 June,
the decision to leave the EU resulted in sales in global markets.
While the sterling was depreciating, sales were taking place in
emerging markets as investors turned to safe haven investment
vehicles. This situation led to an increase in the expectation that
the US Federal Reserve will postpone the interest rate increase.
However, the fact that the markets are focused on the Fed's
expectations in the short run instead of focusing on the possible
negative reflections of Brexit on the longer run limits the negative
impact of the referendum in the first place. In contrast, the UK
currency pound was one of the most depreciated currencies in
2016. The depreciation of the currency has continued, especially
as the details of how the UK's disintegration process developed in
the European Union became clearer. For this reason, the sterling
lost about 7% from July to the end of the year. There is a possibility
that the separation process lasts for 2 years and in this process,
especially the London finance center, may cause permanent
damage to the continuing UK economy. Moreover, the splitting
of Britain's decision to split up in other Member States is seen as
an important risk for the European Union.
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In the US, presidential elections have boosted volatility in global
markets.

After Donald Trump won the presidential elections in the US, as
the markets did not anticipate, there were severe fluctuations in
global markets. While the dollar index and US bond yields have
risen sharply, there have also been emerging emerging market
developments. If Trump's defensive foreign trade and effective
fiscal policies are outweighed by the promises of election, it is
likely that inflationary pressures will be seen by rising prices in the
US. This leads to the expectation that the Fed will be able to
increase interest rates faster in the upcoming periods.

Oil prices started to move upwards.

Oil prices, which experienced a sharp decline in 2014 and contin-
ued to decline in 2015, recovered in 2016 and surpassed S 50 /
barrel. While the supply surplus was effective in the decline of oil
prices, the news about the freezing of the oil production amount
in February 2016 was influential on the increase of the prices
again. However, in April, Qatar's capital, Doha, ended an upturnin
prices that could not be reached at an agreement on production
freezing at a meeting between the Organization of Petroleum
Exporting Countries (OPEC) and non-OPEC producers. The OPEC
members who worked to freeze the production level in order to
put an end to this halving of ail prices in the last two years and to
raise prices again in September, held an informal meeting in
Algeria in September. At the meeting, one of the biggest produc-
ers of oil, Russian Energy Secretary Alexander Novak, said that the
freezing of the production level could be negotiated at the official
meeting of OPEC, which again prevented the upturn in the prices
that could not be made. Although the producers agreed to limit
the production of oil, the fluctuations in oil prices affected the
fact that concrete steps could not be taken during this period. On
November 30, 2016, OPEC member countries gathered in Vienna
to take a decision to reduce their oil production levels by 1.2
million barrels a day. Given that global growth is slow, there are
doubts that OPEC's oil producing countries will abide by the
decisions made to reduce supply, and rock gas producers who
end their production activities by taking advantage of the recent
low prices, It can be said that the rise in oil prices will be limited in
2017 when it is thought that they will be rejoined.
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TURKISH ECONOMY

Turkey's economy in the third quarter of 2016
Decreased by 1.8%.
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Gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 4.5% in the first two
quarters of 2016 with the support of household consumption
expenditures. In the third quarter of the year, growth was
negative for the first time since 2009 compared to the same
period of last year and the Turkish economy shrank by 1.8%.
Seasonally and calendar-adjusted GDP contracted by 2.7% in the
third quarter compared to the previous quarter. The third quarter
saw the lowest growth rate after the first quarter of 2009 with
seasonally adjusted and calendar adjusted figures. Household
spending in the third quarter and the decline in investments were
the determining factor in the negative growth, while public
spending was the only spending component that affected
growth. Despite the sharpest increase in public spending since
1999, this increase has not compensated for the negative impact
of other items. The Turkish economy grew 2.2% in the first nine
months of 2016, losing momentum compared to the same
period last year.

Looking at the growth of the sectors on the basis of the other
sectors, agriculture, industry and services sectors in the third
quarter of the year is seen to shrink. In the first three quarters of
2016, the tourism and agriculture sectors were negatively affect-
ed by the problems with Russia. However, the fact that relations
with Russia have begun to re-normalize will lead to a reduction in
the negative effects both in the last quarter of the year and in the
coming year. The construction sector, which contributed positive-
ly to growth in the first two quarters of 2016, continued to make
a positive contribution to growth in the third quarter of the year.

In the third quarter of 2016, TURKSTAT has revised the national
income calculation and revised past growth figures. The first
quarter growth of 2016 was down from 4.7% to 4.5%, while the
second quarter growth increased from 3.1% to 4.5%. The
uptrend in the national economy seems to be positive in that it
may be effective in reducing the current account deficit / GDP
and budget deficit / GDP ratio. On the other hand, in the last
quarter of the year, preliminary data on economic activity signals
recovery. Loan disbursements in the banking sector in the fourth
quarter and restrictions on installment restrictions on credit
cards, thus positively affecting growth by increasing household
consumption, especially by increasing individual credit volume. In
addition, this could lead to an increase in finance and insurance
activities. However, industrial production, one of the most impor-
tant forerunner indicators of growth, has risen slightly in October
from low levels, and the increase in public spending will continue,
leading to some recovery in the fourth quarter. However, the
positive contribution of industrial production to growth in the last
period with the high effect of lead effect can be limited to a
certain extent. According to the Medium Term Program forecast
published by the Republic of Turkey Ministry of Development, the
Turkish economy is expected to grow by 3.2%in 2016 and 4.4%in
2017.

1

In the calculation of the Gross Domestic Product (GDP), the new calculation
method has been passed by the third quarter of 2016. With the new calculation
method, the base year of 1998 has been changed to 2009.
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Unemployment rate in January-September 2016
10.5% respectively.
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The average rate of unemployment, which was 10.2 in the first
nine months of 2015, rose to 10.5% in the same period of 2016.
The seasonally adjusted unemployment rate, which was 10.2% in
the January-September period of 2015, rose to 10.6% in the
same period of 2016. The slowdown experienced in economic
activity in 2016 has been influential in the increase in the unem-
ployment rate. By October 2015, employment growth was
achieved in the industrial and service sectors excluding agricul-
ture according to seasonally adjusted figures.

The expected increase in growth in 2017 is predicted to play arole
in reducing unemployment. The increase in labor force in recent
years, especially due to the increase in the participation of
women, will continue in 2017, which will limit the decrease in
unemployment rate.

Inflation ended 2016 at 8.53%.
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Inflation, which ended the year 2015 at 8.8%, ended 2016 with
8,53% above the OVP estimate of 7.5%. In particular, the decline
ininflation in the first half of the year, the rise in food prices below
the historical average in 2016, the calm course of the exchange
rate and the low oil prices were effective. However, in the last
quarter of the year, there was a rise in the wages, a rise in the
prices of SCT before the new year, and an increase in the inflation
due to the increase in the prices of oil and food. In addition to the
increase in exchange rates in 2016, commodity prices were deter-
minative of the increase in the producer index of currencies, and
the fluctuating producer prices index reached 9.94% at year-end.
In the upcoming period, the movement in food prices as well as
the movements in exchange rates may have an impact on
inflation. In addition, due to the measures taken within the scope
of Food and Agricultural Product Monitoring Committee (Food
Committee), it is predicted that food inflation will be realized at
low levels according to the historical averages in 2017.

In this context, if there is a low course in food prices and a
decrease in exchange rate volatility, there is a possibility that a
favorable course will be observed in 2017 compared to 2016 in
inflation. Itis possible that there will be a slight technical decline in
the first month of 2017, but inflation is likely to turn up in the next
few months and inflation is expected to decline to 6.5% in 2017
under the Medium Term Program (2017-2019).

Foreign trade deficit declined to USD 50.4 billion in January-No-
vember 2016.

Foreign trade deficit, which was 57.2 billion dollars in January-No-
vember 2015, decreased 50.4 billion dollars in the same period of
2016. The annual foreign trade deficit, which was $ 65.7 billion in
November 2015, was $ 56.6 billion in November 2016. The
improvement in exports was more effective than imports. The
decline in energy imports due to the favorable impact of lower oil
prices on oil prices continued to make a slight contribution to the
decline in the annual foreign trade deficit. Moreover, weak
domestic demand has also been influential in the decline in
annual foreign trade. However, in the same period, exports
declined due to the ongoing economic problems in countries
with significant trading partners and the decline in the EUR / USD

parity.
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The downturn in energy prices as of January 2016 indicates that
the positive base effect of energy prices on the foreign trade
deficit will decline in 2017. However, stabilization at $ 50 / barrel
despite rising oil prices will have an impact on the continuation of
the contribution of energy prices to foreign trade deficits. As a
result of the decisions made by the public authorities, the revival
of internal demand in 2017 will create some upward pressure on
the foreign trade deficit. On the other hand, the normalization of
our relations with Russia, which is an important foreign trade
partner, can positively affect our foreign trade openness. Howev-
er, the integration of Iran into global trade with the removal of
embargoes on Iran will also have an impact on the development
of our commercial relations with Iran. The decline in imports that
could have occurred in 2017 if the upward trend started in the
currencies as of October 2016 continues in 2017, could have a
contraction effect on foreign trade deficit. Positive developments
in commercial relations and the rise in foreign exchange rates
may be positive in 2017, but there is a possibility that the foreign
trade deficit will increase slightly in 2017 due to the negative
impact of energy prices.

The current account deficit stood at $ 26.5 billion in January-Oc-
tober 2016 due to the recovery in foreign trade.
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The current account deficit, which was $ 41.4 billion in the
January-October period of 2015, decreased by S 26.5 billion in
the same period of 2016. The annual current account deficit,
which stood at $ 32.3 billion in GDP and 3.8% in GDP in 2015, fell
to US $ 33.8 billion in October 2016, compared to the 12-month
cumulative figures.

In the first ten months of 2016, the contraction in terms of
foreign trade in the recovery in the current account deficit was
decisive. The decrease in energy imports, especially due to the
low course effect of ail prices, has made a significant contribu-
tion to improving the current account deficit. Moreover, the
contraction in global trade volume has been a decisive factor in
the decline in imports. Foreign trade developments in the
January-October period of 2016 supported the narrowing of
the current account deficit compared to the same period of the
previous year, and the decline in net service revenues and the
outflow of foreign exchange due to income negatively affected
the current account balance. In the decline in net service
revenues, the decrease in the number of tourists entering the
country due to the problems experienced in the environment
economies is decisive, while the profit transfers due to the
foreign exchange outflow due to income balance were
effective.

There is a possibility that the rise in energy prices will have an
upward effect on the current account deficit in the foreign trade
channel in 2017. However, the normalization of relations with
Russia will have a positive effect on commercial relations and
tourism, and the development of commercial relations with
Iran will limit the negative effect of energy prices. As a result of
the decisions taken by the public authorities, the exchange rate
increase in the last months of 2016 may limit the increase in
imports and current account deficits, although the revival of
domestic demand in 2017 is likely to create some pressure on
the current account deficit, especially through imports. For this
reason, it is expected that the rise in current account deficit in
2017 will be limited.
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The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey (CBRT) continued to
use interest and non-interest instruments together in 2016,
following a policy of price stability as well as financial stability. In
the period of March-September 2016, the CBRT cut the marginal
funding rate by a total of 250 basis points, which is the upper
band of the interest rate corridor. At the November meeting, the
CBT increased the policy rate by 50 basis points, citing the
inflationist pressure of the exchange rate movements created by
the global market and the uncertainty experienced in the global
economy, and raised the marginal rate of funding, which is the
upper band of the interest rate corridor, by 25 basis points, To
8.50. Thus, after the harsh interest rate hike in January 2014, the
CBT, which had interest rate cuts at intervals, increased its policy
rate for the first time in November. In addition, the CBRT has
adopted the required reserve ratios as well as the interest rate
hikes it has made in order to intervene in the wake-up activity. In
this context, it is expected that the policies to be followed by the
CBRT in the upcoming period will be affected by the global
market conditions and the exchange rate as well as the inflation
outlook due to the currency exchange rate. On the other hand,
the US Federal Reserve (Fed) will continue to increase interest
rates gradually in 2017 after the second interest rate increase in
December 2016. In the US, loose fiscal policies promised by new
President Donald Trump have begun to be bought at high-inter-
est rates, in a way that will cause upward pressure on prices and
thus the Fed will tighten faster. This situation has caused rapid
increases in the US dollar and interest rates, and this situation will
continue for a while. This situation is expected to affect the
CBRT's monetary policy in the upcoming period.

The Central Government Budget gave a deficit of 2.1 billion TL in
January-November 2016 period.
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The central government budget, which had a deficit of 5.4 billion
TLinJanuary-November 2015 period, had a deficit of 2.1 billion TL
in January-November 2016 period. Budget revenues of 441
billion 793 million TL in January-November 2015 period have
increased by 15.1% to 508 billion 583 million TL in the same
period of the same year. Budget expenditures, which were 447
billion 222 million TL in January-November 2015 period, have
been realized as 510 billion 702 million TL in the same period of
2016 with an increase of 14.2%. It is expected that the ratio of
central government budget deficit to GDP, which is 1.2% in 2015,
will be realized as 1.6% in 2016 within the Medium Term Program
(2017-2019). As it is expected that government spending will
increase in order to support economic activity, it is expected that
the ratio of central government budget deficit to GDP in 2017 will
be 1.9% within the Medium Term Program (2017-2019). On the
other hand, in the first 11 months of 2016, the primary surplus
increased by 1% compared to the same period of the previous
year. It is foreseen that the primary surplus which is important in
terms of debt management will be realized as TL 26.3 billion in
2016.

Central Government Gross Debt
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Central government gross debt stake of TL676.9 billion in Novem-
ber 2015 was TL 751.8 billion as of November 2016. TL 468.2
billion of the debt stock consists of TL denominated debt and FX
denominated debt amounting to TL 283.6 billion. Given the ratio
of debt to GDP in the framework of the Maastricht Critique,
which is also referred to as "the EU's Financial Rule", it appears
that there has been a steady decline since 2009, especially since
2009. The fact that the mentioned ratio is below the Maastricht
Criteria indicates the fiscal policies implemented in Turkey, which
receives investment grade credit, and the progress in public
administration.
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Domestic borrowing valley
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Looking at the year 2016, the average monthly cost of fixed-rate
domestic borrowing in November rose to 10.1% from 9.5% in
December 2015. The average cumulative valuation of cash
domestic borrowing, which was 71.8 months in 2015, was 67.8
months in November 2016. On the other hand, in order to
expand the investor base and diversify borrowing instruments,
the export of rent certificates, which were first exported in 2012
and started to be regularly exported on the domestic market
since 2013, continued in 2016 as well. In this framework, in
February, July, September and November, a total of TL 6.26 billion
rent certificates were issued in the internal market.
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2016 YILINDA VAKIF LEASING

In 2016, Vakif Leasing's endorsement decreased by 10,10% compared to the previous year, from 250,894 thousand USD to 225,545
thousand USD. The figure of 412 transactions in 2015 was 502 units with an increase of 21.84% in 2016.

The total amount of Vakif Leasing's active contracts in 2016 decreased by 8,57% compared to the previous year and decreased from
222,675 thousand USD to 203,589 thousand USD. The number of active contracts, which amounted to 388 in 2015, increased by
25.77% to 488 in 2016.

One thousand USD-Vakif Leasing increase %
Period 2016 2015 Artis %
First 3-month period 32,709 72,140 -54,66
Second 3-month period 50,195 47,976 4,63
Third 3-month period 49,840 50,598 -1,50
Fourth 3-month period 70,845 45,253 56,55
TOTAL 203,589 222,675 -8,57
488 388 25,77

Number of contracts
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GENERAL ASSESSMENT

Being one of the first players of the Turkish leasing sector and maintaining its pioneering role in the use, promotion and improvement
of Financial Leasing products since 1988, Vakif Leasing achieved an effective trading volume of 204 Million dollars in 2016.

Vakif Leasing is aiming to act as a financial intermediary between SMEs, which constitute a significant part of its customer portfolio
and investors in the commercial segment, and aims to continue its path by increasing its market share in the sector and to increase
the company's development in a competitive and dynamic environment.

In 2016, the Sales and Back Charge product contributed to the transaction volume of Vakif Leasing in parallel with the sector. In the
coming period, Vakif Leasing aims to concentrate on real estate, business and construction machinery in line with its sustainable
targets and aims to increase its market share in investment preferences in 2017 as well.

With nearly 30 years of experience, sectoral knowledge and solution-focused employees and alternative financing options have
brought a great deal of activity to our company as well as the sector. The "Selling and Re-Leasing" tool, which is especially preferred by
firms that have a need for capital and have the aim of expanding their business, can strengthen their equity as well as make their
credibility higher.

With a transaction volume of USD 204 million in 2016, Vakif Leasing will increase its assets by 12% to 1,687 Million TL, its leasing
receivables by 17% to 1.5 billion TL and its shareholders' To 170 million TL, and has maintained its growth trend.

Our company, which does not have any concentration in any sector but aims to be popular in the credibility of customers in every
sector, especially in SMEEs, aims to increase its market share in investment preferences over the years.

At the beginning of our targets for 2017, our transaction volume is a healthy growth when Turkey's domestic market growth and
commercial credit demand are taken into consideration. Taking back the corporate strength of more than 900 branches of Vakifbank,
it continues to work extensively with a broad customer portfolio and service network throughout the country.

Vakif Leasing is represented on branch basis in Ankara, izmir, Adana, Bursa and Antalya in order to provide fast and responsive service
to its investors. It plans to realize its target with the development of branch network and personnel support throughout Turkey.
Among our goals for 2016, a healthy growth takes the first place considering our trading volume, Turkey’s domestic market growth
and demands for commercial loans.

In order to provide on-premise service and quick response for its investors, Vakif Leasing is represented by its branches in Ankara, izmir,
Adana, Bursa, Antalya and Gebze, and plans to achieve this goal with the extension of its branch network throughout Turkey and
personnel support.
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PRIMARY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

TOTAL ASSETS (THOUSAND TL)

+%12

Total assets of Vakif Leading raised to
1,686,534with a 12 % increase
when it is compared to the last year.

2015 1,505,588

2013 1,066,607

LEASING RECEIVABLES (THOUSAND TL)

+%16.6

Total leasing receivables of
Vakif Leasing raised to 1,548,067
with a 16.6%

increase when it is

compared to the last year.

2015 1,328,031

2013 901,691

CREDITS OBTAINED

+%11.3

Total credits obtained of

Vakif Leasing raised to
1,465,056 with a 11.3 % increase
when it is compared to

the last year.

2015 1,316,237

2013 881,275

[ Vakif Leasing

Size Dogru Gelecek
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PRIMARY FINANCIAL INDICATORS AND RATIOS

8

PRIMARY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (THOUSAND TRY)

+%18.4

i Total shareholders’ equity of

Vakif Leasing became 170,103 TRY
with a +18.4 % increase when it is
compared to the last year.

2015 143,644

2013 109,114

GROSS PROFIT/LOSS (THOUSAND TL)

-%5.5

The gross profit of Vakif Leasing
raised to 18,351 TRY

with a -5.5 % decrease when it is
compared to the last year

2015 19,418

2013 11,902

NET PROFIT (THOUSAND TRY)

-%1.5

Net profit of Vakif Leasing became
(23,284) TRY witha -1.5 %
decrease when it is

compared to the last year.

2015 23,637

2013 1,313
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PRIMARY RATIOS
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PRESS STATEMENT

<

Jcn EFI JCR Eurasia Rating

“Global Knowiledge Supported by Locsl Expenence”

PRESS RELEASE
Istanbul = March 09, 2017

JCR Eurasia Rating
hus reviewed and ufﬂn-ned Ihe credh rmlngs of

JCR Euvrasia Rafing hos reviewed and affimed the investment graode credit rofings of *Vakid Finansal Kiralama A5, and is subsidiary’s consolidaled
shructure™ os "BBB+ (Trk) on the Long Term National Scale and os “A-2 (Trk)" on the Short Term Mafional Scale, and assigned a “Stable’ cutiook for all
grodaes. On the other hand, the Long Term Infermnaficnal Foreign and Local Curency Ratings have been affmed at the country celing lovel of "BBB-".
COther notas and details of the rafings are given in the fable below:

Long Term Infernational Foreign Currency :  BEB- [ [lable Outiook)
Leng Term Inlernalienal Local Cumency 1 BBB- f |Stoble Oullook)
Leng Term Mational Lecal Ratfing 1 BRE+ (Trk) [/ (Stoble Cublcok)
Short Term Infernational Foreign Cumency 1 A3 |Stable Cullock)

Short Term Infernational Lecal Currency 1 A3 [ |Stable Cullock)

Short Term National Lecal Rating i A=2 (k) / (Stable Qutiock)
Sponsor Support 1 2

Stand Alone :  AB

The Turkish Leaging Sector, dominaled by the bank shared companies and with more agociative acliviies with the banking sector compared to other
counfries, maintained it contibufion fo the development of the notional econony through supporting the copital investrments of smoll and mediurm
size enferprises [SMEs) with high growth potential operaling inan increasingly competifive market in the globaization era and having dfficulties in fhe
proceses of credit access with relatively imited equity and renewal of lechnological infrastrocture to increase competitivenes. The performonce of
the sector, which is direclly comelaled with investor fsk oppetite, hos confinued its posifive development regording osset size through supportive
reguialicns on fox raes and ongoing contibutions of increased product diversity despile the highly volatile market condifions caused by presune of
global ond domestic uncertainties. As such, the dgnificant decline in sector growth, exercised affer 2007 due fo the obolifion of provided lax advanioges
and ghobal crisls, again fumed into a growth trend through the confribution of restored tax advantoges for certain preduct classes and the produch
range increasingly diversified through the infroduciion of imfruments such o 'operalional leasing’ and 'sell ond lease bock'. The secior comies fne
paotential to grow its asset size in the future through the increasing preference of funding theough leasting by companles in all scales, the Increasing share
of leasing In the procuremnent of machinery and equipment of major public infrastnectore projects, the possible contributions of *credit guarantee fumd”
proctices and the comparafively low penetrafion level

vakif Rnansal Kralama A5, having a high complonce level with corporale govemance practices within the scope of Its publicly Ested shamehalding
struchure, cames out it operations mainly focused on SME: and invesion in the commerncial segment through s heodguarters, five branches, over 200
branches of it porent company, Vakifbank, representing the gualified shoreholder and ils consolidated subsidiary, Vakif Sigorfa Arocdk Hizreted
Limited jirketi [Viakif Sigorta). The Company which has a shor-terrn weighled borowing struciure despite displaying a better comgasition than the sector
average, managed to bolance the sk level associated with Iquidity posiion through its broad funding sources uliizing the advanioges of belng a bank
related company, aimed fo confibute to Bquidity management and risk posificn and created opportunity for future growth through the envisaged debt
insbrument isseance in the short-term which is compatible with its curent bolonce sheet composifion. Althcugh the Company exhibited o decreasing
mearket share frend over the last five years, itimproved ibs customer base and lowered the credit risk on its oclivilies through the rising number of conbracts
and the decreased average controct value,

The comparatively low equity levels deived from robust shareholding stecture and ease of access to funding sources, representing the inhevent features
of bank-reloted companies, obo hold tree for Vakil Leasing. On the other hand. the Company imgroved its equity level ogoinst the deterdorating secior
figure thanks to satistactory intemal equity generalion capacity achieved over the last bwo years and the menagement shategy envisaging lo support
the equity level through the retention of generated intemal resources, Although the continuously above sechor NPL rafio and the cumulative effect of
doubtul receivables positioned above equity suppressed fhe asset quality, the Company manoged to relieve the stoted pressure through ifs high
collaterd and colleciabilty level and generaled o positive conbibulion potential on future prefitability ratics through reakized and envisoged collections
in the cument perod. Within these comiderations, the sustainabdity of intermal rescurce generafion capacity fogether with its contribution to equity level,
proboble effect of collection potential from doubiul receivables on profitability and the possible pressure of chalenging and competitive market
condifions on asset quality emenged as the isues to be monilored closely,

The Company's Sponsor Suppord Grade has been affimed as (2) bosed on JCR Euwasio Rofing’s nototion scole toking into considerafion the willingness
of the shareholdern to supply long ferm lquidity and equity should the need arse along with the expedence fo provide effective operational suppord.
On the offer hand, taking info occount the Company's organizational stuchure, auset size, market efficiency, corporate govemance practices and
past frack record, we, as JCR Ewasia Rafing, are of the cpinion that Vakd Finansal Kiralama A%, has recched the level of odeguale experience and
lociifies o manage he incumed risks on ils balance sheal regardless of any asislance rom the shareholders, provided thal it maintaing the afficiency
I the market, Within this contesxt, the Stand Alone Grade of the Comparny has been determined as (AB) in the JCR Eurasla Raling notation system.

Far mare information regarding the raling resulls you may visit owr infemel site htp:/f'www jerer.com.ir or contact cur analyst Me,Gokhan IYIGUN.

JCR EURASIA RATING
Adminisirafive Board

cwn 2007 by JCR M.lm-si:r Rating, 19 Mayss Mih,, 19 Mayss Cad, Nova Baran Plesa Noid Kot 12 $il-ISTANBUL Teleplome: +990. 21245256 73 Fax: +90 {212) 3525675

dacrica is d excepr by peraiss .d.l'llnll.ll:nrurmlMmmmhmdﬁunmmFmequmhﬂmﬂmﬂ‘i
ﬁnmhﬁudﬂnmmmmmmi.ﬂmmm 4 oy of this infe o, SR Ewrastae Batteg rofiags ane objeciive and imdependent opimions as t the
eredinvertiiness of a securily and fsuer and nod o be el @ dertio ro bay, kald or sell any securily o fo issue g lean, This roting report has been composed sithin

the methodelogies regivtered with and certified by the SFK (CMB-Capital Markets Bowrd of Turkey), BINDK (BRSA-Banking Regwlotion and Supervision Agency) and intermatenaliy
aceepted raitag primciples cad gutdeline but is mof covered by NRESRD regulafions, hitpiwww jerer.com.ir



VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

[ Vakif L easing

Size Dogru Gelecek



VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016 55

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT V2 O ‘ 6 ‘

pwec

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ORIGINALLY PREPARED AND ISSUED IN TURKISH

To the Board of Directors of Valaf Finansal Kiralama A.S.:
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Valkaf Finansal Kiralama A.S.
(the “Company”) and its subsidiary (the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency ("BRSA”™) Accounting
and Reporting Legislation which includes "Communiqué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus to
be implemented by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies” published in the Official
Gazette numbered 28861 dated 24 December 2013 and "Regulation on Accounting Practices and Financial
Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies”, communiqués, and circulars and,
announcements made by BRSA and requirements of Turkish Accounting Standards for the matters not
regulated by the aforementioned legislations, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
Our audit was conducted in accordance with Independent Standards on Auditing which is a component of
the Turkish Auditing Standards published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Authority ("POA"). Those standards require that ethical requirements are complied with and that the audit
is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An independent audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on independent auditor's
professional judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud. In making those risk assessments, the independent auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An independent audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the company’s management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our audit is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion,

PwC Bagimsiz Denerim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miigavirlik A.5.
BJK Plaza, Siileyman Seba Caddesi No:48 B Blok Kat:9 Akaretler Begikeag 34357 lstanbul - Turkey
T: +590 212 326 6060, F: +90 212 326 6050, www.pWC.COM.IT  Marsis Numaraenz 0-1460-0224-0500015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Opinion:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Vakaf Finansal Kiralama A.S. and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2016, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with BRSA Accounting and

Reporting Legislation.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with subparagraph 4, Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code (*TCC") No. 6102;
auditor’s report on the early risk identification system and committee has been submitted to the
Company’s Board of Directors on 9 February 2017,

In accordance with subparagraph 4, Article 402 of the TCC, no significant matter has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the Company's bookkeeping activities for the period

1 January - 31 December 2016 is not in compliance with the code and provisions of the Company’s articles
of association in relation to financial reporting.

In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC; the Board of Directors submitted to us the
necessary explanations and provided required documents within the context of andit.

Additional Paragraph for Convenience Translation:

The effects of differences between accounting principles and standards explained in detail in Note 2 and
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying consolidated financial
statements are to be distributed and International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS") have not been
quantified in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the accompanying
financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations and changes
in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
such countries and IFRS.

PwC Baﬁ'lmmz Deneﬁm ve

istanbul, g Fﬁl}runnrnmf""‘
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 V

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

co NIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless atherwise stated.)

Amilined Audiiied
Current Period Prbar pereiedd
ASSETS Nuke (31 Deecwmbar 3016} (31 Decembser DOIS)
TL FC Total TL FC Total
L CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS and CENTRAL BANK - - - - - .
IL FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIE VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
O LOSS (Met) . - . = =
21 Fimancial Assets Held for Trading . . . - -
13 Fimamcial Assets al Faar Value Through Profit or Loss - - -
21 Derivative Financial Assets Held for Trading . . . . . .
(LIS BANKS 5 1528 14,156 16,681 L182 S5 L]
Iv. RECEIVABLES FROM REVERSE REFURCHASE
AGREEMENTS . - - . . .
Y. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Net) & £ - L&, 1 4961 . 4961
Vi FACTORING RECEIVABLES - - - - - -
6l Discounted Facloring Receivables - - - - .
610 Domeesta - - - - -
612 Foreign . . E - -
613 Uneamed Income (-) . . - - -
6 Cher Factoring Receivables . . - . .
6Ll Domeestse - - - - -
612  Foreign . . . -
Vil FINANCE LOANS - - - -
T Coesumer Loans - - . - .
12 Credit Cards - - - - -
3 Commercial Instalment Loans - - - - - -
VL. LEASE RECEIVABLES T BEAEET  LIE2.D0 1A4E06ET Mngel 107 46T 1AZE801
&1 Receivables from Leasing Transactions ISATE LI4R06E 1500133 3108 | L29EI0S
BLI Firamcial Lease Recenvables 4520001 1190488 L T42.4B5 393683 LAESOZN 1508714
BL2  Operational Lease Receivables . . . - . .
813 Uncamned Income {-) (1D0S2E)  (140.42%)  (24235%) (EXE8Up  (12TA20p (200,803
B2 Assets b0 Be Leased 5,75 7550 15,554 .35 .3 14T
LB ] Advances Given for Leasing Transactions S0 25,500 3600 1400 12612 15004
L5 OTHER RECETVABLES BLITS b -3 52" 4T3 1 474
X DOUBTFUL RECETVARLES 1 7 43,064 65,791 25,150 4,115 695
1o Deoubaful Facionng Receivables . . . - - -
102 Dioubiful Finance Loans - - - - - .
103 Doubaful Lease Recenvables 40,080 2,715 182,78 0,63 123,928 164,567
104 Specilic Provissoms (=) (17.342) Rasly (117005 (15.459) (EXTIE) 98,171
XL HEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCLAL ASSETS . B . . .
1 Fair Valse Hedge = = =
ne Cash Flow Hedge = = = - -
113 Foreign Net lavestment Hedge . . . . R
X HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Net) - - . N
X1 SUBSIDIARIES (Net) - - - - -
X1, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Net) - - - -
XV, JOINT VENTURES (Net) s = = = = =
XVL FROFERTY AND EQUIFMENT (Net) § 108 a 11,18% 19 - 19096
XVIL INTAMNGIBLE ASSETS (Net) L] &8 - &% 1.0 = 12
170 Goodwill - - - - - -
172 Other [t . Qg 1000 - (]
NVIIL  PREPAID EXPENSES 13 in 3,358 3554 1 35T 4126
XX CURRENT PERIOD TAX ASSET L] - E1 i - 40
XX DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 1 18985 B JELI 11884 - 11504
XXL OTHER ASSETS 12 &2 . L+ 41 - 4l
SUBTOTAL HAME  LMADEE 143631 ML L1 [ELE ]
XXIL  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (Net) 1] f ] F- (] - -
Ixl Held for resale g Fu - -
f2 Ik d Ohperations = = = = =
TOTAL ASSETS 44346 LMA0EE 168653 MORSSE LIDGS0 1505584

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 57 from an integral part of these financial statements.
1
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 V

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"™) unless atherwise stated.)

Audiged Audited

Current Ferlod Frevious Perfod
LIABILITIES Note (21 Mecember 316} (31 Decembser M5
TL FC Total TL FC Total
L DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIARBILITIES HELD FOR TRADING . . 14,673 - 14,673
I FUNDS BORROWEL 4 JEMHT  LI3nNe  l4eS0%e  3A9000 FALIDE  LBNGXNT
I FACTORING FAYABLES - - - . . .
. LEASE OBLIGATIONS - - - . . .
4l Finance Lease Obligations N . . - - -
4z Operational Lease Obligations - - -
% Onher = = =
4 Deferred Finance Lease Expemses (=) - - - - - -
v. DERT SECURITIES ISSUED {Net) . . . . .
51 Bills . . . . .
5k Assel-Backed Securities . . . ,
LE Bonds . . . . . .
Vi MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES (1] 0787 10,148 20,058 A814 .14 10,054
Vi, OTHER LIABILITIES 16 10557 12,265 23,162 6547 9512 15,863
Vi DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR RISK
MANAGEMENT. - - - -
81 Fair Value Hedges - - - -
B2 Cash Flow Hedges - B . -
B3 Net Foreign Investment Hedges - - - - - -
Ix. TAXES AND DUTIES PAYABLE ] LS . 1095 ] - ]
x PROVISIONS 1" EETT) . 3,308 LI . L
0.1 Restnactunmg Reserves - E - - - -
02 Reserves Far Emploves Benelits 1300 - 3300 3,319 - 339
103 Oither Provisioes . . - = = =
XL DEFERRED INCOME 1,197 1,584 1,773 BL 1,581 LIl
XL CURRENT PERIOD TAX LIABILITY n - - - 14 - 14
X DEFERRED TAX LIARBILITY - - - - - -
Xy SUBORDINATED LOANS . . . . . .
SUBTOTAL e LISLTER 1316451 METIE LG L3E1L%M
XV, FAYABLES RELATED TO ASSETS FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPFERATIONS - - - - - -
151 Held For Sale . .
152 Discomised Operations - E - - - -
XL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 170,104 - 1T R4 - LG
161 Paid-in Capital 3 B7.000 - AT0M 65000 - 65,000
162 Capital Reserves 353 . 353 35 - 185
15210 Share Premoums . . . . .
1622 Share Cancelbation Profits R = - - - -
1823 Other Capital Reserves 153 s 13 151 = 15
163 Accusnulsted Other Comprebensive Income that will not be Reclissified 1o
Profit or Loss 17418 . 17418 14,550 - 1450
164 Accumudated Other Comprebensive Income that niay be Recluaified
subsequently 1o Profit or Loss A - 1483 24TE - 1478
163 Profit Reserves RS0 = 38510 35,873 - 36873
1651 Legal Reserves 5100 B 5100 3000 - 3000
1652 Swumaory Reserves . P . N - .
1643 Extraordinary Reserves I3 A00 - AWM ape - zpsd
1634 Other Profit Reserves - - . - - -
166 Profitor Loss 23154 - 20,264 FAlizg - 23,607
1661 Prior Periods ProfitLoss . . . - - -
l4d2 Current Period ProfitLoss e ] - ik ] 23637 - 23,637
167 Nos-Controlling Inieresis i - o 1] - 1]
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY SOLT46  LIBMTEE LGS SBRALY  STALER  1.S65.SEE

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 57 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited
Current Feriod Frier Feriod
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS Nite (31 December 2016) (21 December 2015y
TL FC Tatal TL FC Total

L IRREVOCARLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS
1. REVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - - - - - -
(118 COLLATERALS RECEIVELD n ASIRILY 1LITNIALS 14TE0.63E IBT 105 369,193 56,198
v, COLLATERALS GIVEN - - - = = -
Y. CONMITMENTS F L 60613 151,882 31465 20,551 187,917 AT AGE
51 Irrevecable Commalments 11,637 41,5132 53150 12,078 17.062 20,140
52 Revocahle Conmitments 43974 210,339 250315 47473 1 70,855 218528
521 Lease Commitments 4ROTE 210,339 250315 47473 1 70,855 2183528
3211 Finance Lease Commitnsents 458976 210339 2M31E 47473 170,855 218528
32,0 Operational Lease Commitmests - - - - - -
522 Oaher Revocable Commitnsents - - - - - -
VI DERIVATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRUMENTS n = = - 91388 100,303 193,688
6l Derivative Financial Instruments for Risk Management = = = =
611 Fair Valae Hedges
612 Cash Flow Hedges
613 Met Foreign lnvestment Hedges - - - - - -
62 Drerivative Fancial Instruments Held For Trading - - - 2385 100,303 193,688
621 Forward Foreign Currency PurchasesSales. - - - - - -
622 Swap PurchasesSales - - - 92,385 101,303 193 6488
623 Put’call optioms. - - = = = -
624 Futures purchasessales
625 Crhers
VIL ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY

TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AE0880 L1ATRIET M5072.103  439.M1  6R8403  LEGTAS

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 57 from an integral part of these financial statements,
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Andiied Jomlied
y — Nste Current Period Previeus Period
e SECOME AND EXEIREIE [TEMS h 2] Dectmpber PRISY (3] Decomsbar 2015
L OPERATING INCOME TFE-3 1041
FACTORING INCOME -
L1 Facteaing lrseres] oo
LLl  Discounted
112 Dither
1.2 Factoning Commission Income
121 Discoumed
122 Oaber
IROOME FROM FINANCING LODANS
13 Tmterent wwvine Bom Minancey kbans
14 Fees amd commissions received Fom financing kears = -
LEASE INCOME (1FE -3 104,89
15 Fimnce Lewe Income 110415 102833
1.6 Operational Lease Ineome . -
Ly Fees amd Conmnmsion lcons om Lesss Operatiom 1M 1854
IL FINANCING EXPENSES () R Th, 268
1 Tmtcvest Expemns on Funds Bomowed e T T
2> Imierest Expesse on Factonng Payables - -
23 Tmtevest Fapemng of Funne Leasung Fipomes
24 Imtevest Expesne on Secmimes Issued - -
13 Other Intexest Expenes 27 (12
16 Fees smed Cormmpamoms Pad [ediet 1] 1o
I GROSS PROFIT / LOSS (1+0) BN LEEL ]
. OPERATING EXPENSES ) 1] [LELTY 14,187
4l Perscane] .3 (3.685]
42 Reserve for erplvins termmmst on benefits [y [4IEH
43 Develop el R h Exy .
44 Cieneral sdsssnnlpalne expene (L] Hlll_
45 Ohers - .
Y. CGROSS OFERATING INCOMELOSS (IIHV) JLEL]] LR 1]
Vi OTHER OPERATING INCOME m piET] L]
&l Imevest bucoane: on Bank [ 1] et
[ Tmtévest bnsoane on Bevirse Reptrchase Agreements
63 Imievest Income on Seowmities Portiolie
631 Interest kooomn on Financzal Asscts Held for Trading
632  Imevest Income en Financial Assets ai Fagr Vidse Threugh Profil or Loas
633 lmerest booome on Finascal Asicts Availsble For Sake
634 Imevest Income on Financal Assets Held 1o Manmity
LX) Dvnidend Ineome
65 Trading Account Incoms L2
[EN] Income From Derivitive Fmnascial [ssbrmenss L3
652 Onher - .
(1] Feaeign Exclangs Gams. 19,125 L4
a7 Hhers LERTL L]
VIL FROVISHIN FOR LOSSES ON NON-FERFORMING RECEIVABLES (-} 7T (2T 45K} [LEE"
VIII.  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES () kU SEE) 15,059
Bl Ingpainment Losses on Securities Portolio [r1] .
B0 lmpairene Losses on Fiamneis] Aseeis o Fair Vil Theough Profi of Loss .
B2 Tngpairmesd Losses on Poancial Assets Avadlable For Sale (k1]
£0.3  Impainment Losses on Fimneisl Assets Held so Mabarity -
82 Tngpairmend Losses on Noo-Cumenl Asscls
£21  Impairment Losses on Tasgible Asets
822 Togpawmend Losses an Assets Held For Sale s Dincontmiiod Opcaatioas
£23  Impairment Losses on Goodwill
24 Tngmirmeot Losscs oh Other Intmagible Asscts
28 Loases on i Associales and Joind Venlures = -
£3 mhmmumt-ml Insiroemenis . 14,508
LY Fenvign Exclergs Lossrs .
LE] Other (56T} (Lo
IX. XET OPERATING PROFIT / LOSS (Vé....4VII HES - L E]
X. INCOME RESULTED FROM MERGER .
XL GAINLOSS OX NET MOXETARY POSITION . -
XL PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX (IX#X+XT) b T b L]
XL INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM CONTINUING OPERATHINS () 1] [LE e ] [LETTH
131 Cwrrent Tax Charge 1] - iTE]
132 Defersed Tax Charge (-) [EE 2] (4,764
133 Deferred Tax Benefit (+) . .
XIV.  NET FROFIT FROM CONTINUING OFERATIONS (XIIaX1II) 8,380 3367
X¥. INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS . .
151 Income fom Assets Held for Sale
152 Giaam on Sake of Assocubes, Subislagie: and Joimt by Coateolled Enltas
135 Diher Income Bom Discontimed Operations
XYL  EXFENSES FROM DISCONTINUED OFERATIONS {-)
|LA] Expemse on Assets Held for Sake
162 Lossom Sale of Associaies, Sebsidiaries and Jedatly Controlled Entitkes
163 CHher Expenses Bom Discootmoed Operals
XVIL  PROFIT FROM MSCONTINUED OPERATHINS BEFORE TAX(XV-XVII)
AVIL INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM MSCONTINUED OFERATIONS [2)
%1 Cwrreni Tax Charge
122 Deferaod Tax Charge (-}
153 Deferred Tax Benefit (+)
XIX.  NET FROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XVTHXVTIT
o UNCONTROLLABLE FROFIT OR LOSS 3 417
XXL  NET FROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (XIV-XIX+XX) kL] 3437
EARNKINGS FER SHARE i Ll LE L]

Esmings Per Shase from Continned Operations. LT [T
Earnings Per Shaee §om Dwcoatmicd] Opcratons. -
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 1o 57 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016 6 2

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated. )

Andited Andited
Current Previow
FROFIT/LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT Period Period
Note (31 December 2016) (31 December 2015)
I CURRENT PERIOD FROFIT/LOSS 13,181 213,679
1L OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 3,116 15027
L1 Ttems that will mot be Reclassified to Profit or Loas A6 14,916
211 Tangible Assets Revaluation | D 2540 15,904
212 Intangible Assets Revaluation Increases Decreases - -
b Emploves Benefits Re-Measuring Loss Tncome 17 15 (34)
214 Orher Comprehensive Income that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
215 Taxes related with Comprehensive Income that will not be Reclassified to Profit or
Loss (128 (928)
2051 Current Tax Income Expense . .
2152  Deferred Tax Income Expense (129) (928)
L2 Dtemis ihat may be Reclassified subsequently 1o Profit or Less To0 m
211 Foreign Exchange Differences for Foreign Cumrency Tmosactions - -
.22 WValue Increases or Decreases on Assets Held for Sales Rz 1
223 Cash Flow Hedge Income Losses - -
214 Met Investment Hedge Income Losses
213 Oaher Comprehensive Incomse that may be Reclassified subsequenthy to Profit or Loss
2246 Taxes related with Comprehemsive Income that may be Reclassified subsequently to
Profit or Loss (42)
2260 Current Tax Income Expense .
2262  Deferred Tax Income Expense (42)
111, TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1+11) (*) 26,497 38,706

(*) Minority interests are not included.

The accompanying notes sel outl on pages 10 1o 57 from an integral part of these financial statements.
5



SHERESPELS pervrem) 25 jo wed esiten e wougp oop ) sednd w0 mo s snon Sanioedooooe )

R I R TR B AT s S Ll S T e

e g es e = e e s

|
:‘
g
d
: ]
]
‘H“ EH =dHAaddAd

ey Fe— w-sl—y T ET
[ 54

e S —

([ PRSP SRS SR (1. ] O] W peesaie SRy )
9107 ATAWIIAM 1€ - RAVANYI 1 GOTHId THL H04 ALINOE NI STONVHD 40 INTWILYVIS
SV VINVTVEI TVSNYNLS A1V A

NANCIAL STATEMENTS

T ALON NI IS "HSINELL N1 adNsSst ATTVNIDHEO
LHOdTH SSHOLIANY INFONASIANT ANY SINTIWALVLS TVIONVNIA
HSTTEONT OLNI NOLLVTISNYHL AIONFINTANOD

©
<
o
&
e
[
m
>
[
Q
w
(@)
i
\p)
)
=
a)
Z
(R
(o)
9
o
[
o
o
T
T
o
@)
T

CONSOLIDATED F

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016



L
FHEESPELS rieem)] 25 10 ued psan = map ;o] s8ed mo mo 125 o Senioedooooe )

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

R I R TR B AT s S Ll S T e

" S Py S . —— ]

il

ve)

]

1

)

§

|
g

. gy Pty B i o 9 wE HH
[}

P s A e—

([ PRSP SRS SR (1. ] O] W peesaie SRy )
9107 ATAWIIAM 1€ - RAVANYI 1 GOTHId THL H04 ALINOE NI STONVHD 40 INTWILYVIS
SV VINVTVEI TVSNYNLS A1V A

T ALON NI IS "HSINELL N1 adNsSst ATTVNIDHEO
LHOdTH SSHOLIANY INFONASIANT ANY SINTIWALVLS TVIONVNIA
HSTTEINT OUNI NOLLY TSNYEL AINFINTANOD




ey werorr /205 ¢ O
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 V

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounis expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated. )

Awdited Audited
Current Perbod Prior Perisd
Naobes 3 December 2016 31 December 2018
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1.1 Oypernting Profit before Changes in Operting Assets and Linbikities 13471 42,309
111 Itemasts Rocoived' Loasing Inconss 105,771 102,143
1.12 Eerest Paid Leasing Expense - -
113 Leasing Expenses
1.1.4 Diividdend Reeeived = =
1.1.5% Fees md Cemmissions Received 2,170 1,864
1.1.6 Oither Incoms: 18,355 20,672
1.1.7 Collections from Previously Written-off Doubtful Receivabiles 2,317 823
118 Paymwents 16 Personmel and Service Sappliers (9.394) (B.685)
119 Taes Paid 11 - (64)
LLID  ooher {95,748) (T4, 444)
1.2 Changes in Operatisng Assets ad Lishilities (63 485) (6.606)
1.1 Net {Incrense)Decrense in Factorimg Receivables = =
1.2.1 Bt {Incrensa} Diecrsase in Finanoe Loans. - -
121 Net (Increased Diecreass in Lease Receivables (237,171} (268.441)
122 et (Increased Decreass in Crber Assets (7.32%) 1,167
123 et Imerease (Decreass) in Factogizg Paysbles - -
1.23 Net I A ) ity Lesse Payabd - -
1.24 et s A ) in Funids B 1 157,955 289,861
1.2.5 Net Incrense/(Decrease) in Payables = =
1.2.6 Mt Incrense/{Decrease] in Other Lisbilsties 23,056 (29.193)
L Kt Cash Provided frem Ciperating Activities (40,014) 35,703
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 yuisition of e Avsointes and Subidiari
22 Dispesal of | Associates and Sabsidian - -
23 Purchases of Property and Equipment 9,10 (188} (1,435)
24 Dispenabs of Propeny and Equipment - 59
25 Prachase af Investments. Available-foe-sale -
26 Sale of Brvesmsents Availablefor-sale
27 Parchase of Investment Secarities Held to Matrity
28 Sale of krvestmeent Securities Feld to Maturiy
2.9 Cither - =
11 Net Cash (Used inpProvided from Tnvesting Activithes (188) (1,376)
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
3l Csh Obesimed frons Punds Bomowed snd Securities lased
3.2 Cash Used for Repayment of Fands Borrowed and Securities lsusd
33 Issued Capital Instraments
34 Dividends Paid
35 Paywents for Fusanor Leases
EX Cither
TIL Met Cash Provided frem Finascing Activithes
v, Effect of Change in Forvign Exchange Rate on Cash asd Cash
Equivalents 1,224 6,032
V. Nt Increase/{Decrease] in Cash and Cash Equivalents (38,978) 40,359
VI Cash and Cash Equivalents ai Beginning of the Period 5 55,658 15,199
VIL Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Period 5 16,680 55,658

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 57 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

NIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

Current Perfod Prior Period
3 December 2006(%) 31 December 20015
L DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT FERIOD PROFIT (%)
[H] CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT 28,662 28481
1.2 TAXES AND DUES PAYABLE (-) (5.378) (4,544)
L2l Corporabe Tax {Income Tax) - (T8)
122 Withhalding Tax - -
123 Ober e and dues (5,378) {4,766)
A NET PERIOD PROFIT {1.1 - 1.3) 23,254 13637
13 PRIGR YEARS™ LOSSES () - -
14 FIRST LEGAL RESERVE (-) - -
1.5 OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES NEEDED TO BE KEPT IN THE COMPANY {-) - -
B. DISTRIBUTABLE NET PERIOD PROFIT [{A-13+1L4+15)] (**) 13284 13,637
L6 FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
1.6.1 To Croners of Ordinary Skages - b
1.6:2 To Orwners of Preferred Stocks - -
1.63 To Cwners of Preferred Stocks (Pre-cmptive Rights) = =
164 Ta Profit Sharing Bonds - -
L&3 Ta Orwemers of the profin Joss Sharing Certificates - -
1.7 DIVIDEND TO PERSONNEL (-) - .
18 DIVIDEND TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-) - "
19 SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
141 To Owners of Ordinary Skases - "
182 To Orwners of Preferred Stocks - -
153 To Owners of Preferred Stocks (Pre-cmptive Rights) - -
19.4 To Profit Sharing Bonds - B
195 To Orwners of the profit Joss Sharing Certificates - -
110 SECOND LEGAL RESERVE (-) - -
L1l STATUS RESERVES (-) - -
L1z EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES - 457
L3 OTHER RESERVES . 1180
14 SPECIAL FUNDS - -
I DISTRIBUTION FROM RESERVES =
21 DISTRIBUTED RESERVES . .
22 SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
23 SHARE TO SHAREHOLDERS (=) ] =
23l To Owners of Ordinary Shares - -
232 To Orwners of Preferred Stocks - -
233 To Owners of Preferred Stocks (Pre-cmplive Rights) - -
234 To Profi Sharing Bonds - -
235 Tao Owners of the profit Joss Sharing Certificates - -
24 SHARE TO PERSONNEL (=) - -
5 SHARE TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (=) - -
LIS EARNINGS FER SHARE -
31 TO OWNERS OF STOCKS (TL) 02676 0002716
32 TO OWNERS OF STOCKS (%) 02676 02716
33 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCES (TL) = ]
LE] TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (%) - -
™. DIVIDEND FER SHARE =
4.1 TO OWNERS OF STOCKS (TL) - -
42 TO OWNERS OF STOCKS (%) - -
43 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCES (TL) ] ]
RS TO OWNERS OF FREFERRED STOUKS (% ) N N
™ The Company”s Gemeral Assembly has not been held yet and in the profit distribation table only distributable profits kas been specified.

The accompanying notes sel oul on pages 10 10 57 form an mtegral part of these linancial statements
9



VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016 67

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 V

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

Brief history

Vakif' Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi (“the Company™) was established on 15 September 1988 and
operates in accordance with “Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies Law™ published on
the Official Gazette no. 28496 dated 13 December 2012 and “Regulation on Principles for

Establishment and Operations of Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies™ of Banking
Regulation and Supervision Agency (“"BRSA™).

The Company is a subsidiary of Tirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: Tiirck Anonim Ortakh@ (“Vakifbank™) and
the 22.54% of the outstanding shares of the Company are publicly traded at Istanbul Stock Exchange
(“ISE™). The Company has no preferred stock.

Vakaf Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri Limited Sirketi (“Valkaf Sigorta™) was established on 3 January 1995 1o
act as an insurance intermediary between Giines Sigorta Anonim Sirketi and the customers of the
Company for the insurance of the assets subject to finance lease agreements. Vakif Sigorta gives
insurance consultancy, risk management and damage controlling both in Turkey and abroad. Valaf
Sigorta also gives brokerage services between insurance and reinsurance companies. The Company
owns 84.85% of the outstanding shares of Vakif Sigorta and Vakif Sigorta's financial statements are
fully consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, The Company and Vakaf
Sigorta together will be referred as “Group™ in this report,

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has 58 employees; 54 at the Company, 4 at Vakif Sigorta
(31 December 2015: 52 at the Company, 4 at Vakif Sigorta, in total 56).

The registered address of the Company is as follows:

Biiyiikdere Caddesi Matbuat Sokak
Gazeteciler Sitesi No:13

34394 Esentepe - Siglhi
Istanbul/Turkey

Ownership Structure

The ultimate sharcholder having direct or indircct control over the shares of the Company is
Vakifbank Group. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the share capital and ownership structure of the
Company are as follows:

16 31 December 2015

Nominal Value Share Percentage Nominal Value Share Percentage
Name (TL) (%) (TL) (%s)
Vakifbank 51,080 5871 38,163 58.71
Giines Sigorta Anonim Sirketi 13,615 15.65 10,172 15.65
Public Shares™ 19,608 22.54 14,647 2253
Other 2,698 310 2018 3.11
Paid-in capital 87,000 100.00 65,004 104000

{*)  The ratio is calculated from the shares of the Company registered at Istanbul Takas ve Saklama Bankasi
A5, (“Takasbank™).

10
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

A (S

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1  Basis Of Presentation
2.1.1 Accounting standards

The Company prepared accompanying financial statements in accordance with to the “Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies™ and the “Communiqué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus to be implemented
by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies and on Financial Statements to be
announced to Public” published in the Official Gazette dated 24 December 2013 and numbered 28861
and Turkish Accounting Standards published by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Institute (POAAS), (“TMS/TFRS™) and other regulations, communiqués, and circulars announced by
the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA™) (all together “the reporting standards™) in
respect of accounting and financial reporting,

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 are approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue as at 9 February 2017, The General
Assembly and / or legal authorities have the discretion of making changes in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements after their issuance.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis as
adjusted for the effects of inflation that lasted until 31 December 2004, except for the available for sale
financial assets and assets held for sale which are measured at their fair values unless reliable
measures are available.

2.1.2 Additional paragraph for convenience translation into English

The differences between accounting principles, as described in the preceding paragraphs and
accounting principles generally accepted in countrics in which these financial statements are to be
distributed and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS™) have not been quantified in these
financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not intended to present the financial
position, results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in such countries and TFRS,

2.1.3 Correction of financial statements during hyperinflation period

Financial statements were subject to inflation accounting in accordance with “Turkish Accounting
Standards Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™ (“TAS 29™) until 31 December 2004,
The BRSA announced a declaration with a decision dated 28 April 2005 that hyperinflationary period
is over and inflation accounting has ceased as of 1 January 2005,

2.1.4 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

2.1.5 Going concern
The Company prepared its financial statements considering the going concemn principal.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 V

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.1.6 Currency used

Financial statements of the Company have been presented using the currency (functional currency) of
the economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial position and the resulis of
operations of the Company have been presented in the Turkish Lira (“TL™).

2.1.7 Critical Accounting evaluations, estimates and assumptions

Preparation of these financial statements requires estimates and judgments regarding the reported
amount of assets and liabilities or contingent assets and liabilities and reported amount of income and
expenses of the related period. Such estimates and judgements are based on the Company’s best
estimates regarding current events and transactions, however, the actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future years affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are described in the following notes:

Allowance for impairment of lease receivables

A credit nisk provision for impairment of leasing receivables is established if there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due. The estimates used in
evaluating the adequacy of the provision for impairment of lease receivables are based on the aging of
these receivable balances and the trend of collection performance.

Recognition of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets can be recorded as much as the said tax benefit is probable. Amount of taxable
profits and possible tax benefits in the future is based on medium term business plan and expectations
prepared by the company. The business plan is based on rational expectations of the company under
current circumstances., Explanations about possible effects on deferred tax assets are presented in
Note 10.

Fair value measurements of the share certificates

Fair value measurements of the share certificates are valued for determination of fair value by
independent valuation instutions once a year.

12
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

A (&

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2. Changes In Accounting Policies
2.2,1 Comparatives and restatement of prior year financial statements

In order to enable the determination of the financial position and performance trends, the Company’'s
financial statements have been presented comparatively with the prior period. Reclassifications are
made on comparative figures to conform to changes in presentation of the financial statements and
major differences are explained.

2.2.2 Changes in accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and the prior period’s financial statements
are restated accordingly. There is no major change in the accounting policies of the Company in the
current year,

The Group decided to pursue the properties for use according to their fair values by separating the land
and buildings within the context of TAS 16 “Turkish Accounting Standard on Property, Plant and
Equipment™ afier changing the accounting policy as of 30 September 2015.

2.2.3 Change in accounting estimates and errors

The effect of a change in an accounting estimate is recognised prospectively in the period of the
change, if the change affects that period only; or the period of the change and future periods, if the
change affects both, There has not been any significant change in the accounting estimates of the
Company in the current year, Material prior year errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the
comparative amounts for the prior periods.

2.2.4 Amendments in standards and interpretations
New or Revised International Financial Reporting Standards and Applications of Amendments

The Company adopted the standards, amendments and interpretations, related to Company’s activity,
published by the Public Oversight Auditing and Accounting Standards Authority (POA) which are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,

Standards, Amendments and IFRICs applicable to 31 December 2016 year ends

IFRS 14 ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after
I January 2016. IFRS 14, ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ permits first-time adopters to continue to
recognise amounts related to rate regulation in accordance with their previous GAAP requirements
when they adopt IFRS. However, to enhance comparability with entities that already apply IFRS and
do not recognise such amounts, the standard requires that the effect of rate regulation must be
presented separately from other items,
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1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Annual improvements 2014, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
These set of amendments impacts 4 standards:

. IFRS 5, *‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” regarding methods of
disposal.

. IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, (with consequential amendments to IFRS 1)
regarding servicing contracts.

. IAS 19, *Employee benefits” regarding discount rates.

. IAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’ regarding disclosure of information.

Amendment to IFRS 11, 'Joint arrangements' on acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, effective
from annual periods beginning on or after 1 Janvary 2016, This amendment adds new guidance on
how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business, The
amendments specify the appropriate accounting treatment for such acquisitions.

Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property plant and equipment’, and IAS 41, *Agriculture’, regarding bearer
plants, effective from annual periods beginning on or after | January 2016. These amendments change
the financial reporting for bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees and oil palms. It has been
decided that bearer plants should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment
because their operation is similar to that of manufacturing. Consequently, the amendments include
them within the scope of IAS 16, instead of IAS 41. The produce growing on bearer plants will remain
within the scope of IAS 41,

Amendment to IAS 16, 'Property, plant and equipment’ and [AS 38, 'Intangible asscts’, on depreciation
and amortisation, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, In this
amendment the it has clarified that the use of revenue based methods to calculate the depreciation of
an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset
generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset. It
is also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset.

Amendments to IAS 27, “Separate financial statements’ on the equity method, effective from annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, These amendments allow entities to use the equity
method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate
financial statements,

Amendment to IFRS 10 *Consolidated financial statements’ and [AS 28, ‘Investments in associates
and joint ventures’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.These
amendments clarify the application of the consolidation exception for investment entities and their
subsidiaries.

Amendment to IAS 1, *Presentation of financial statements’ on the disclosure initiative, effective from

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, these amendments are as part of the [ASB
initiative to improvepresentation and disclosure in financial reports
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New TFRS standards, amendments and IFRICs effective after 1 January 2017

Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of cash flows” on disclosure initiative, effective from annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2017, These amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
The amendment is part of the [ASB’s Disclosure Initiative, which continues to explore how financial
statement disclosure can be improved.

Amendments [AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017, The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured at
fair value and that fair value is below the asset’s tax base. It also clarify certain other aspects of
accounting for deferred tax assets.

Amendments to IFRS 2, “Share based payments’ on clarifying how to account for certain types of
share-based payment transactions, effective from annual periods beginning on or after
I January 2018. This amendment clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled, share-based
payments and the accounting for modifications that change an award from cash-settled to equity-
settled. It also introduces an exception to the principles in IFRS 2 that will require an award to be
treated as if it was wholly equity-settled, where an employer is obliged to withhold an amount for the
employee’s tax obligation associated with a share-based payment and pay that amount to the tax
authority.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
This standard replaces the guidance in IAS 39, It includes requirements on the classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses model that
replaces the current incurred loss impairment model.

IFRS 13 *Revenue from contracts with customers’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ is a converged standard from the
IASB and FASB on revenue recognition. The standard will improve the financial reporting of revenue
and improve comparability of the top line in financial statements globally.

Amendment to IFRS 15, *‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, effective from annual periods
begining on or after 1 January 2018, These amendments comprise clarifications of the guidance on
identifying performance obligations, accounting for licences of intellectual property and the principal
versus agent assessment (gross versus nel revenue presentation). New and amended illustrative
examples have been added for cach of those areas of guidance. The IASB has also included additional
practical expedients related to transition to the new revenue standard.

15



VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016 73

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 V

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, This standard
replaces the current guidance in IAS 17 and is a farreaching change in accounting by lessees in
particular. Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction berween a finance lease (on
balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a
lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset” for virtually all lease
contracts. The IASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lessors, the accounting
stays almost the same, However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as
well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by
the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact
negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Amendments to IFRS 4, “Insurance contracts’ regarding the implementation of IFRS 9, ‘Financial
instruments’, cffective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, These amendments
introduce two approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. The amended standard will:

give all companies that issue insurance contracts the option to recognise in other comprehensive
income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility that could arise when IFRS 9 is applied before the new
insurance contracts standard is issued; and give companies whose activities are predominantly
connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 until 2021, The
entitics that defer the application of IFRS 9 will continue to apply the existing financial instruments
standard - 1AS 39,

Amendment to IAS 40, Investment property’ relating to transfers of investment property, effective
from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, These amendments clarify that to transfer
to, or from, investment propertics there must be a change in use. To conclude if a property has
changed use there should be an assessment of whether the property meets the definition. This change
must be supported by evidence.

Annual improvements 2014-2016, effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. These amendments impact 3 standards:

IFRS 1, First-time adoption of IFRS’, regarding the deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time
adopters regarding IFRS 7, IAS 19, and IFRS 10 effective | January 2018,

IFRS 12,"Disclosure of interests in other entities” regarding clarification of the scope of the standard.
These amendments should be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017.

IAS 28Investments in associates and joint venturcs’ regarding measuring an associate or joint
venture at fair value effective 1 January 2018,

IFRIC 22" Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’, effective from annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2018. This IFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of
transactions where there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency. The
interpretation provides guidance for when a single payment/receipt is made as well as for situations
where multiple payments/receipts are made. The guidance aims to reduce diversity in practice.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Early adoption of standards

The Company did not early-adopt new or amended standards at 31 December 2016, Considering the
financial statement items of the Company, it is deemed that the prospective changes except adoption
of TFRS 9 would have no significant effect to over the financial position and performance of the

Company.
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
Consolidation principals applied:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiary on the basis set out in sections below. Financial statements of the consolidated subsidiary
are prepared as of the same date as consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into
account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated interim financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases,

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company owns 84 85% of Vakif Sigorta. As the Company has
the power to control the operations of the Vakif Sigorta, the financial statements of Vakif Sigorta have
been fully consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interest

The non-controlling interest in the net asset of the subsidiary of the Company is presented separately
in the Group’s equity. Non-controlling interest comprises the amount of those non-controlling interests
at the date of the first combination and the changes in equity since the date of the combination,

Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
translated by using year-end exchange rates of Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey's bid rates.
Gains and losses resulting from the scttlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary asscts and liabilitics denominated in forcign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

Foreign currency exchange rates used on 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

UsD 3.5192 29076
Euro 37099 31776
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand,
deposits at banks and highly liquid and insignificant risk of change in the value of the investments
with maturity periods of less than three months,

Financial leasing transactions
{th As lessor

Assets which are subject to leasing transactions are presented as a receivable which equals to the
investment amount made for the related leasing transactions. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a periodic constant rate of return. The
leasing payments received are deducted from the gross leasing investments by reducing the principal
and unearmed finance income.

(i) As lessee

The assets which is obtained by financial leasing is capitalized with the lower of fair value of the asset at
the beginning of the leasing period afier the deduction of the tax benefits and incentive or discounted
value of minimum lease payments at the date. The principal payments of the lease are illustrated as
liability and decreases with the payments. Interest payments are reflected to income statement during the
financial leasing period. Assets obtained by the financial leasing are subject to depreciation over the useful
life of the asset.

Allowances for impairment of lease receivables

The lease receivables provision for the impairment of investments in direct finance leases is
established based on a credit review of the receivables portfolio. The Company has set this provision
in accordance with BRSA Communiqué on Procedures Regarding Provisions to be provided for Loans
of Leasing, Factoring and Consumer Finance Companics (“Provisions Communiqué”™) published in
Official Gazette No. 28861, dated 24 December 2013 and the procedure that is about changing the
procedures of Leasing , Factoring and Consumer Finance Companies published in Official Gazette
No. 29918 dated 14 December 2016, According to the Communiqué, specific provisions are sct in the
following proportions: minimum 20% after deducting the effect of collaterals for lease receivables that
are overdue between 151 and 240 days, minimum 50% after deducting the effect of collaterals for
lease receivables that are overdue between 240 and 365 days and 100% after deducting the effect of
collaterals for lease receivables that are overdue for more than one year.

In accordance with the related Provisions Communiqué, the Company also recognises specific
provision even if the overdue days are less than the days stated above or receivables are not over due
at all, by taking into account all the existing data regarding the creditor and based on the principals of
reliability and prudence as indicated in the Communiqué on the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements published in Official Gazette No. 25702, dated 16 January 2003. According to
the Communiqué, the Company might not take into account the collateral amounts while determining
the specific provision mentioned above.

After the collection of receivables for which provision has been set aside, the provision amounts are
reversed and all of the related receivables are deducted from assets. During the collection of a
receivable related to a previous year's provisions, the related collection amount is credited to "Other
Operating Income” account as income,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Financial instruments
The Company classifies securities and accounts as “available for sale” and “subsidiaries™,

Investment securities are classified according to purpose of purchase and Management’s “market risk
policy” at the time of purchase.

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of it.

(i) Secarities held for trading

Financial assets held for trading is the financial assets that are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges.

(i) Investment securities available-for-sale

Awvailable-for-sale investment securities are carried at fair value based on quoted bid prices, or
amounts derived from cash flow models on the financial statements as of the balance sheet date.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of these sccurities are recognised
under equity in the “Marketable Securities Valuation Reserve™ account, If a non-temporary fair value
loss is determined, the effect of this loss is recognised in the statement of income. In case of disposal
of these securitics, the accumulated fair value adjustments are transferred to statement of income,
Investments in equity shares for which the Group has not the power to control or significant influence
are classified as available for sale financial assets in the consolidated financial statements. Available
for sale financial assets, traded in an active market or whose fair value can be reliably measured,
measured at their fair values. Available for sale financial assets, not traded in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably set are measured at cost, less impairment losses, if any in the
consolidated financial statements.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, including forward foreign exchange contracts, are initially recognised
on the balance sheet at cost including transaction costs and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The income and losses recognised in derivative transactions change according to how they are
classified. Income and losses from derivatives designated to effectively hedge cash-flow risk are
recognised as equity. The Company’s derivative transactions, even though providing effective economic
hedges under the Company’s risk management position, do not qualify for hedge accounting and are
therefore initially recognised at cost and subsequently valued at fair value. The fair value gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement.

Fair values of forward forcign exchange contracts and swap transactions are determined based on
market rates or discounted cash flows,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Property and equipment

In the accompanying consolidated financial statements, tangible assets acquired before 1 January 2005
are measured at cost restated for the effects of inflation at 31 December 2004 less accumulated
depreciation. Tangible assets acquired afier 1 January 2005 are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation.

The Group decided to pursue the properties for use according to their fair values by separating the land
and buildings within the context of TAS 16 “Turkish Accounting Standard on Property, Plant and
Equipment” after changing the accounting policy as of 30 September 2015, As a result of the valuation
performed bu an independent appraisal company, revaluation difference of TL 17,517 after deferred
tax effect is accounted under the accumulated other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss.

As of 31 December 2016, the conformity between net book value that was caleulated based on the cost
of properties for use and revaluated values are as follows;

31 December 2016 31 December2015
Fair Value 21,629 19,000
Met book value calculated on cost value 3,190 3,190
Before tax revaluation differences 18,439 15,900
Caleulated deferred tax liability (-) 922 795
Revaluation differences - net 17.517 15,105

Gains/losses arising from the disposal of the tangible assets are calculated as the difference between
the net carrying value and the proceeds from the disposal of related tangible assets and reflected to the
consolidated statement of income of the related period.

Maintenance and repair costs incurred in the ordinary course of the business are recorded as expense.
There are no pledges, mortgages and other encumbrances on tangible assets.

Tangible assets are depreciated over the estimated uscful lives of the related assets from the date of
aequisition or the date of installation, on a straight-line basis over the cost. Useful lives and residual

values are reviewed at each reporting date.

The estimated useful lives of tangible assets are as follows:

Expected Depreciation
Tangible assets Useful Life (Year) Rate (%o)
Buildings 50 2
Furniture and fixture 5 20
Motor vehicles 5 20
Other tangible assets - Leaschold improvements 5 20
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Intangible assets
The Group's intangible assets consist of software,

The cost of the intangible assets purchased before 1 January 2005 are restated from the purchasing
dates to 31 December 2004, the date the hyperinflationary period is considered to be ended. The
intangible assets purchased after this date are recorded at their historical costs.

The intangible assets are amortized based on straight line amortization method.
Assets held for resale

The assets providing the necessary conditions of being classified as the assets held for resale are
recognized with the lower of their book value and fair value less cost of sales. These assets are
presented separately on the balance sheet and are not subjected to depreciation following the
classification. To classify an asset as asset held for resale, the sale potential of the asset (or the asset
group to be disposed) should be high and the asset should be available to immediately sell under
ordinary circumstances in sale of this kind of assets. To have high sale potential, there should be a
proper scheme for sale of the asset (or asset group to be disposed) which is prepared by a proper
administrative level and an active sales program should be launched to complement the scheme and
determine the buyers. Furthermore, the asset should be marketed actively with a price coherent to its
fair value. Various incidents and conditions may extend the completion of the sale term to more than a
year, The asset is remained to be classified as the asset held for resale, if the reason of the delay is the
incidents and conditions out of the control of the firm, and there is no sufficient evidence that the firm
is continuing its sales program of the asset.

The impairment losses and profit and loss from subsequent valuation of the assets classified as the
assets held for resale are recognized on consolidated income statement.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at cach reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or group of asscts (the “cash -generating unit™),

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds

its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Employee benefits

In accordance with existing Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to make lump-sum termination
indemnities to each employee who has completed one year of service with the Group and whose
employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation or misconduct. The
computation of the liability is based upon the retirement pay ceiling announced by the Government.
The applicable ceiling amount as at 31 December 2016 is TL 4,426.16 full TL (31 December 2015: TL
4.092.53 full TL). The Group provided reserve for employee severance indemnities in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements using actuarial method in compliance with the TAS
19 - Employee Benefits.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the actuarial assumptions are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Discount rate Ya3.06 Yl 89
Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase %a7.80 %T.10
Estimated employee umover rate %l .46 %l 86

Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase is determined based on inflation estimates of the government.
The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase in line
with inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate afier adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future inflation,

The Group has provided reserve for short-term emplovee benefits in the financial period as per
services rendered in compliance with TAS 19 — Employee Benefits in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

According to the TAS 19 that is revised by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Authority with the Communiqué published in Official Gazette on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585, in
the calculation of the employment termination benefit liabilities of the Company, the recognition
method of the actuarial gains and losses derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the
differences between actuarial assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been
climinated which is effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, Beginning
of 1 January 2013, the Company has recognised the actuarial gains and losses that occur in related
reporting periods in the “Statement of Comprehensive Income™ and presented in the “Extraordinary
reserves” item in the Equity section of the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

In the consolidated financial statements, a provision is made for an existing liability resulted from past
events if it is probable that the liability will be settled and a reliable estimate can be made for the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are calculated based on the best estimates of management on the
cxpenses to incur as at the balance sheet date and, if material, such expenses are discounted to their
present values, If the amount is not reliably estimated and there is no probability of cash outflow from
the Group to settle the liability, the related liability is considered as “contingent™ and disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in consolidated financial
statements, Contingent assets are assessed continuously to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements of the period in which the change occurs. If an inflow of economic benefits has
become probable, the Group discloses the contingent asset in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Income and expense recognition

Finance lease income

The values of the assets leased within the context of Financial Lease Law are shown as finance lease
receivables on balance sheet at their value determined at the beginning of the leasing transaction. The
interest income generated by the difference between total finance lease receivable and the invesmment
value of the asset subject to leasing is recorded to the income statement of the period by means of
distribution of the receivables with fixed interest rate to the related periods. The interest income not
accrued in relevant period is followed under uneamed interest income.

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized according to the effective interest method based on
accrual basis. Effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the expected cash flows of financial
assets or liabilities during their lifetimes to their carrying values. Effective interest rate is calculated
when a financial asset or a liability is initially recorded and is not modified thereafier.

The computation of effective interest rate comprises discounts and premiums, fees and commissions
paid or received and transaction costs, which are indispensable parts of effective interest. Transaction
costs are additional costs that are directly related to the acquisition or disposal of financial assets or
liabilities.

Fees and commissions

The fees and commissions reecived from and paid due to finance lease operations are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income when the related service is rendered or received.

Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment is ascertained.
Other income and expenses

Other income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis,

23



VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016 8 1

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 V

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Taxation
Corporate taxes

Taxable income is subject to corporate tax at 20%. This rate is applied to net income modified for
certain exemptions (like dividend income) and deductions (like investment incentives), and additions
for certain non-tax deductible expenses and allowances for tax purposes. If there is no dividend
distribution planned, no further tax charges are made.

Withholding tax rate on dividend payments, which are made to the companies except those are
domilicied in Turkey or generate income in Turkey via a business or a regular agent, is 15%. In
applying the withholding tax rates on dividend payments to the non-resident institutions and the
individuals, the withholding tax rates covered in the related Double Tax Treaty Agreements are taken
into account. Appropriation of the retained camings to capital is not considered as profit distribution
and therefore is not subject to withholding tax,

The prepaid taxes are calculated and paid at the rates valid for the earnings of the related years. The
payments can be deducted from the annual corporate tax calculated for the whole year earnings.

Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward up to five years. As at
31 December 2016, the Group has no deductible tax losses (31 December 2015: no deductible tax
losses).

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies
file their tax returns until the end of the 25" day of the 4™ month following the close of the accounting
year to which they relate. Tax returns are open for five vears from the beginning of the year that
follows the date of filing during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and
the related accounting records on which they are based, and may issue re-assessments based on their
findings.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized, in accordance with TAS 12- Income Taxes, on all
taxable temporary differences arising between the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their corresponding balances considered in the calculation of the tax base,
except for the differences not deductible for tax purposes and initial recognition of assets and
liabilities which affect neither accounting nor taxable profit,

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are reported as net in the consolidated financial statements only
if the Group has legal right to present the net value of current year tax assets and current year tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are income taxes of the same taxable
entity.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Transfer pricing

In Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law
with the heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqué on
disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing, dated 18 Movember 2007 sets details about
implementation.

According to the Communiqué, if a taxpayer enters into transactions regarding sale or purchase of
goods and services with related parties, where the prices are not set in accordance with arm's length
principle, then related profits are considered to be distributed in a disguised manner through transfer
pricing. Such disguised profit distributions through transfer pricing are not accepted as tax deductible
for corporate income tax purposes.

Investment incentive

As per the provisional 69th article which is added to the 193 numbered Income Tax Law by 5479
numbered Law that is published on 8§ April 2006 dated and 26133 numbered Official Gazette and
became effective since | January 2006, tax payers could deduct investment incentives calculated
according to the legislation provisions (including tax rate related provisions) in force as at
31 December 2005, only from the taxable income of the years 2006, 2007, and 2008, In this context,
income and corporate taxpayers could deduct the following items only from the taxable income of
2006, 2007, and 2008;

1-  The carried forward investment incentive exemptions, which could not be deducted from 2005
revenue and available as at 31 December 20035,

2-  For the investments, which made in the scope of investment incentive certificates drawn upon
taxpayer's application before 24 April 2003 and started within the frame of 193 numbered
Income Tax Law’s additional 1, 2,3.4.5 and 6th articles - later repealed by 4842 numbered law-
the amounts that realized in the scope of certificate after the date | January 2006.

3-  Within the frame of Article 19 of 193 numbered Law which repealed 5479 numbered Law,
investment expenditures incurred after 1 January 2006 will be deductible only from the profits
of years 2006, 2007 and 2008 provided that they are economically and technically integral parts
of the investment started before 1 January 2006,

In this frame the rights of tax payers who could not deduct investment incentives fully or partially due
to insufficient taxable income during those years, are abrogated as at 31 December 2008, According to
this regulation limiting the right to deduct the investment expenditure from taxable profit, investment
incentive exemption will be applied to the taxable profit of 2008 at the latest. Investment incentive
exemption amount which could not be deducted due to lack of taxable profit till the end of 2009 is not
possible to be deducted from the taxable profit of 2009 and subscquent years, Meanwhile, this
exemption amount cannot be recorded as expense in the tax books.

In accordance with the decision taken by the Turkish Constitutional Court on 15 October 2009, *2006,
2007 and 2008” clause of the provisional Article no. 69 of Income Tax Law mentioned above, is
repealed and time limitation for the use of investment incentive is removed. The repeal related to
investment incentive is enacted and issued in the 8 January 2010 dated and 27456 numbered Official
Gagzette.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accordingly, investment incentive amounts carried forward to 2006 due to lack of taxable profit and
the other investment incentive amounts which arising from investments prior to 2006 and on goes after
this date in the context of cconomic and technical integrity can be applied for not only 2006, 2007 and
2008 but also in subsequent years. Accordingly, the Group will be able to deduct its remaining
investment incentives from taxable profit in the future without any time limitation.

Pursuant to the 6009 numbered Law published on 1 August 2010 dated and 27659 numbered Official
Gazette and became effective accordingly, the amount of investment incentive exemption which is
deducted from income to estimate the tax base cannot be more than 25% of the income, and the
remaining income will be subject to income tax at the prevailing tax rate. In accordance with this law
and Constitutional Court decision there is no time limitation in using investment incentive amount
carried forward from year 2005 but the amount could not be more than 25% of income.

The clause “The amount which to be deducted as investment incentive to estimate tax base cannot
exceed 25% of related income” which has been added to first clause of the temporary 69th article of
Law MNo: 193 with the 5th article of Law No: 6009 on Amendments to Income Tax Law and Some
Other Laws and Decree Laws has been abrogated with the decisions no: E.2010/93 and K.2012/20 on
9 February 2012.

Related party

In accordance with TAS 24 — Related Party Disclosures sharcholders, key management and board
members, in cach case together with companies controlled by or affiliated with them, and associated
companies are considered and referred to as related parties. Related party transactions consist of the
transfer of the assets and liabilities between related parties by a price or free of charge,

For the purpose of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, sharcholders of the Company
the companies controlled by/associated with them, key management and the Board members of the
Company are referred to as related parties.

Earnings per share

Eamings per share disclosed in the statements of income is determined by dividing the profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the period concerned. In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making
a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus shares™) to existing sharcholders from retained earnings to
shareholders® equity. For the purpose of earnings per share computations, the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issued
without a corresponding change in resources by giving them retroactive effect for the period in which
they were issued and for each earlier period (Mote 21).
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Subsequent events

Subsequent events means the events occurred between the reporting date and the authorization date for
the announcement of the financial statements. In accordance with TAS 10 - Events Affer the Balance
Sheet Date; post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Group’s position
at the balance sheet dates (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Posi- balance sheet events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

Statement of cash flows

The Group prepares consolidated statement of cash flows to inform the users of the consolidated
financial statements about the changes in its net assets, its consolidated financial structure and its
ability to affect the amount and timing of its consolidated cash flows with respect to changing external
conditions,

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated cash flows of the period are reported with a
classification based on operating, investing and financing activities. Consolidated cash flows from
operating activities represent cash flows from activities within the scope of business. Consolidated
cash flows relating to investment activities represent cash flows used and generated from investment
activities (fixed investments and financial investments). Consolidated cash flows relating to financing
activities represent the sources of financing the Group used and the repayments of these sources.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, for the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents are presented below:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Banks 16,681 55,658
Interest accruals on bank deposits (1) -

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of cash flows 16,630 55,658

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other segments and whose operation results are regularly reviewed by Board of
Directors.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business as all the group entitics operate in
one geographical area, Turkey. The Group’s primary format for scgment reporting is based on
business segments. The business segments are determined based on the Group’s management and
internal reporting structure,

27



VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016 85

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 V

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated. )

3 - SEGMENT REPORTING
Business Segments
The Group comprises of two main business segments,

. Finance lease includes the Group's finance lease operations.
. Insurance includes the Group’s insurance brokerage operations.

Finance Insurance Consolidation

31 December 2016 Lease Brokage Adjustments Total
Finance lease income 112,585 - - 112,585
Insurance brokerage service income - 1,062 - -
Total segment revenue 112,585 1,062 - 113,647
Net operating profit 25,893 (26) (208) 28,659
Income taxes (5,383) 5 - (5,378]
Net profit for the year 23,510 {21) (208) 23,281
Specific provisions for loans

and receivables under follow up (22 488) - - (22 ,488]
Depreciation and amortization (1,097) - - (1,097]

Finance Insurance Consolidation

31 December 2015 Lease Brokage Adjustments Total
Finance lease income 104,696 - - 104,696
Insurance brokerage service income - 1,229 - 1,229
Total scgment revenue 104,696 1,229 = 105,925
Net operating profit 28371 347 (195) 28,523
Income taxes (4,776} (68) - (4,844]
Net profit for the year 23,595 279 (195) 23,679
Specific provisions for loans

and receivables under follow up (15,559) - - (15,559]
Depreciation and amortization (6OT) - - (66T
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3 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 the Group’s segment assets, segment liabilities and
capital expenditures are as follows:

Finance Insurance Consolidation
31 December 2016 Lease Brokage Adjustments Total
Other Information
Segment assets 1,686,425 3,197 (3,088) 1,686,534
Segment liabilities 1,516,667 2,744 (2,980) 1,516,431
Capital expenditures - - - -
Finance Insurance Consolidation
31 December 2015 Lease Brokage Adjustments Total
Other Information
Segment assets 1,505,270 4,121 (3,802) 1,505,588

Segment liabilities 1,362,230 3,408 (3,604) 1,361,944
Capital expenditures - - -

Capital expenditures of the segments comprise of the acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets in
the related periods.

4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANKS

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of bank balances are as follow:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Banks 16,681 55,658
Demand deposit 9,291 55,658
Time deposit 7,390 -

Taotal 16,681 55,658

As at 31 December 2016, time deposits consist of bank placements with maturity less than three
months and with interest rates average 7.2% for foreign currency. Group do not have TL time
deposits.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no time deposits.
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5 - AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 20135, available for sale financial assets are as follow:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Carrying Carrying
Value!™ Share (%) Value Share {%a)
Not Traded at Stock Market:
WVakif Faktoring A.S. 3,606 379 3,009 379
Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 1,921 327 1,735 3.27
Vakaf Yaunm Menkul Degerler A.S. 266 0.25 217 0.25
Total Available for Sale 5,793 4,961

) Marketable securities that are in 3. line,it includes fair value of marketable securities that fair value
determination 15 carmied out by independent valuation instutions representing the shares in the capital,

6 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES

The details of finance lcase receivables are presented below:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC

Lease receivables 440,406 1,258,347 390,648 1,106,366

Invoiced lease receivables 11,595 32,138 3,045 8,655

Subtotal 452,001 1,290,485 393,603 1,115,021

Unearned interest income (100,928) (141,425) (82,889) {127,5200
Leasing conlracls in progress 5,784 7,550 7,358 7.354

Advances given for lease transactions 9010 25,590 2,402 12,612

Finance lease receivables, net of

unearned income 365,867 1,182,200 320,564 1,007 467

Impaired lease receivables 40,080 142,715 40,639 123,928

Specific provision (17.352) (99.651) (15,459) (82,713)
Impaired lease receivables, net 22718 43,004 25,180 41,215

Finance lease receivables, net 388,595 1,225,264 345,744 1,048,682
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6 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Prospective aging analysis of the neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired lease

receivables is as follows:

Uptol 4 year
31 December 2016 yvear 1-2vear 2-3vear 3-4 vear and over Total
Lease receivables 664936 463,159 312,800 197,294 152231 1,790,420
Unearned interest income (102.938) (69,521) (41,007)  (19,340) (9.547)  (242,353)
Finance lease receivables, Net 561,998 393,638 271,793 177,954 142,684 1,548,067
Uptal 4 year
31 December 2015 year 1-2year 2-3year 3-4 year and over Total
Lease receivables 546,614 391,342 285,501 177,166 137,817 1,538,440
Uneamed interest income (91,6353 (592307  (33.834) (16,634) (9.056) (210,409
Finance lease receivables, Net 454979 332,112 251,647 160,532 128,761 1,328,031

As of 31 December 2016, the average compounded interest rates for finance lease receivables are
%15.52 for TL, %8.37 for USD and %:6.20 for EUR (31 December 2015: %15.85 for TL, %7.92 for

USD and %5.26 for EUR).

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the aging of the lease receivables and related specific provisions

are as follows:

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

Neither past due nor impaired 1,456,259 1,286,605
Past due but not impaired 43,874 11,700
Impairment 182,795 164 567
Allowances for impairment (117,003) (98,172)
Finance lease receivables, net 1.565,925 1,364,700

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

151-240 days 14,020 24,558
241-1 year 10,243 5,392
| year and over 158,532 134,617
Impaired lease receivables, net 182,795 164,567
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6 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, details of the impaired lease receivables and related specific
provisions are as follows:

_31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TP YP TP YP

Impaired lease receivables 40,080 142,715 40,639 123,928
Specific provisions (17.352) (99.651) (15,459 (82,713)
Impaired lease receivables, net 22,728 43,064 25,180 41,215

The movement of the specific provision during the vear is as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Balances at the beginning of the vear 98,172 84,970
Provision for the year 22,488 15,559
Collections during the year (2317 (823)
Finance lease receivables written off during the year (1,340) (1,534)
Specific provisions at the end of the year 117,003 98,172
The details of collaterals taken for finance lease receivables that have specific provisions are as
follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Mortgage 43,369 44 588
Cash blockages 20,002 15278
Motes received 327 747
Total collateral 63,698 60,613

The group reviews any change in credit quality related to receivables from the date it is created to the
balance sheet date in order to decide whether the receivable can be collected or not. Since the Group
has many customers, credit risk concentration of the Group is not at a significant level. Sectoral
distribution of the finance lease receivables is presented in Note 24.
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7 - TANGIBLE ASSETS
Movement in tangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2016 is as follows:
1 January 2016  Additions"™ Disposals 31 December 2016

Cost:

Buildings 19,974 2,540 - 22514

Furniture and fixture 884 6 (8) 882

Motor vehicles 482 120 - 602

Other tangible assets

(inc. leaschold improvements ) 115 52 - 167
21,455 2,718 (8) 24,165

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings (1,093) (497) - (1,590)

Furniture and fixture (699) (80) 8 (7711

Motor vehicles (452) (32) - {484)

Other tangible assets

(inc. leasehold improvements) (115) (16) - (131)
(2,359) (625) 8 (2,976)

Net Book Value 19,096 21,189

' The balance consists of the revaluation difference of the properties for use.
Movement in tangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 20135 is as follows:
1 January 2015 Additions Disposals 31 December 2015

Cost:

Buildings 4074 15,900 - 19,974

Furniture and fixture 737 154 (7} 884

Motor vehicles 769 - (287) 482

Other tangible assets

{inc. leasehold improvements ) 115 - - 115

5,695 16,054 (294) 21,455

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings (H38) {255) - (1,003)

Furniture and fixture (621) (85) 7 (699)

Motor vehicles (397) {83) 228 {452)

Other tangible assets

(ine. leaschold improvements) (113) - - (115)
(2,171) (423) 235 (2,359]

Net Book Value 3,524 19,096

As 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, there is no mortgage on the tangible assets of the
Group.

As of 31 December 2016, total insurance coverage for tangible assets of the Group is TL 12,836
(31 December 2015: TL 11,428TL).
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8 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Movement in intangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2016 is as follows:
1 January 2016 Additions Disposals 31 December 2016

Cost:
Software 1,673 10 - 1,683
1,673 10 - 1,683
Aceamulated amortization:
Software (671) {394) - (1,065)
{671) (394) - (1.065)
Net book value 1,002 618

Movement in intangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2015 is as follows:

1 January 2015 Additions Disposals 31 December 2015

Cost:
Software 392 1,281 - 1,673
392 1,281 - 1,673
Accumunlated amortization:
Software (385) {286) - (6711
{385) (286) - {671
Net book value 7 1.002

9 - ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group's assets held for resale are composed of
movables and immovable that are added to assets as a result of legal proceedings with regard to
impaired lease receivables are detailed below:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Lands and buildings held for sale 208 -

Total 208 -
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10 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Corporate tax provision

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

- 14

- 14

VAT payable 1,652 407
Social Security Premiums 316 139
Income tax o0 105
Stamp tax 3 3
Other 25 -
2,095 654

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Corporate taxes payable - 78
Less: Prepaid taxes - (64)
Current income tax liabilities, net - 14

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Tax expense

Corporate tax expense for the period - (78)

Deferred tax income/ (expense) effect (5,378) (4,766)
(5.378) (4,844)

Reconciliation of current period tax expense to theoretical tax expense of the Group calculated by

using the statutory tax rate:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Profit before taxes 28.659 28,523
Theoretical tax expense with 20% tax rate (5,732) (5,705)
Utilised investment incentive 943 847
Mon-deductible expenses {621) (25)
Tax-free income 32 39
Other - -
Current year tax expense {5,378) (4,844)
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10 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Deferred taxes

The Company caleulates and accounts for deferred income taxes for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial statements
in accordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes” (“TAS 127). In the deferred tax
calculation, the enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation, is used as of the balance sheet
date.

As mentioned above, as of 31 December 2016, the Company’s management recorded deferred tax
asset amounting to TL 199,946 from unused investment according to constitutional court decision.
(31 December 2015: TL 220,278)

Details of cumulative temporary differences and the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
calculated by using the effective tax rates are summarised below:

Total Deferred tax assets/
Temporary differences (liabilities)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2016 2015

Lease Asset Receivable Impairment 71,729 53,605 14,346 10,721
Unused investment incentives- without stoppage 19,770 46,748 3,954 9,350
Dernivatives discounts - 13,673 - 2,735
Unused investment incentives- with stoppage 180,176 173,530 360 347
Provision for employee termination benefit 1,740 1,617 348 323
Provision for unused vacations 1,124 1,171 225 234
Other short term emplovee benefits 446 441 89 88
Deferred tax assets 19,322 23,798
Finance lease income accruals (10,386) (5.636) (2077 (1,127

Tangible and intengible assets

revaluation difference (18,437 (15,9007 (922) (795)
Subsidary revaluation fund (3.653) (2,821) (183) (141)
Others (925) (1.154) (185) (231
Deferred tax liabilities (3.367) (2,294)
Deferred tax assets, (net) 15,955 21,504

The movement for deferred tax assets is as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

1 January 21,504 27,198
Current year deferred tax income/ expense (5,378) (4,766)
Deferred tax in Equity income/expense (171) (928)
31 December 15,955 21,504
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11 - OTHER ASSETS
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of other assets are as follows:

_31 December 2016 __ 31 December 2015 _

TL FC TL FC

Others 82 - 41 -

Total other assets 82 - 41 -
12 - PREPAID EXPENSES

_31 December 2016 __ 31 December 2015 __

TL FC TL FC

Letter of guarantee and commissions 79 3,381 - 3871

Insurance 42 - 35 -

IT expenses 18 - 6 -

Subscription expenses 8 = 5 .

Others 24 2 209 -

Total other assets 171 3,383 255 3,871

13 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

As ar 31 December 2016, there is no derivative financial liabilities held for trading purpose of the
Group (31 December 2015: 13,673 TL).

14 - BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 20135, details of the borrowings are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 mber 2015
TL FC TL FC
Domestic banks 237383 432,542 348979 184,003
Foreign banks 67,964 727,167 10,032 773,223
Total Borrowings 305,347 1,159,709 359,011 957,226
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14 - BORROWINGS (Continued)

Carrving value
Amount in Average
original interest Uptod 3 months to Over
31 December 2016 currencies rates(%s) months 1 vear 1 vear Total
Borrowings from domestic banks:
Fived rate borrowings:
TL 237383 12.01 149,647 4463  832T3 737,383
USD (thousand) 63,452 398 629 272,672 . 223301
EUR {thousand) 53,607 3.01 . 180,196 18,680 198 876
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 2,794 233 . 5184 5,181 10,365
Total borrowing from domestic banks 150,276 412,515 107,134 669,925
Borrowings from foreign banks
Fived rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 163,742 362 136,067 B4.659 386,744 607,470
USD (thousand) 16,219 4.70 35821 71,256 . 57077
TL 67,964 12.9% 67,964 . . 67,964
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 16,879 220 3,809 6,905 51,906 62,620
Total borrowings from foreign banks 243,661 112,820 438,650 795,131
Total borrowings 393,937 525,335 545,784 1,465,056
Carrying value
Amount in Average
original interest Upta3 3 months to Over
31 December 2015 currencies rates(%a) months 1 vear 1 vear Total
Borrowings from domestic banks:
Fixved rate borrowings:
TL 348,979 677 244,819 91,785 12375 348,979
USD (thousand) 25,546 390 29 608 44,670 . 74278
EUR (thousand) 30,340 235 . 64,633 31776 96,409
Floating rate barrowings:
EUR (thousand) 4,191 233 . 4,440 8876 13,316
Total barrowing from domestic banks 274,427 205,528 53,027 532,982
Borrowings from foreign banks
Fixed rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 158,707 3.86 53,914 188,241 262,152 504,307
USD (thousand) £3,080 430 44,965 150,077 46,522 241,564
TL 10,032 16.60 10,032 - . 10,032
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 8,608 205 1,519 4904 20,929 27352
Total borrowings from foreign banks 110,430 343,222 319,603 THI 2SS
Total borrowings 384,857 548,750  3¥2,630 1,316,237
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15 - MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of miscellancous payables are as follows:

—31 December 2016 _31 December 2015 _
TL FC TL FC
Payables to suppliers for

financial lease operations - 10,248 - 5,240
Other trade payables 9,323 - 4,350 -

Provisions for suppliers for financial
lease operations (*) 464 - 464 -
Total miscellaneous payables 9,787 10,248 4,814 5,240

Y Provisions for suppliers for financial lease operations consist of provisions for the finance lease contracts
which invoices have not been received. The amounts in this account are transferred to finance lease
payables account when the invoices of the goods that are subject to finance lease transactions are
received.

16 - OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of other liabilities are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Advances received 10,897 12,265 6,547 9322
Total other liabilities 10,897 12,265 6,547 9322

Advances received consist of rent advances received from the customers in respect to financial lease
contracts for the machinery and equipment that are not delivered to the customers.
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17 - PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 20135, details of provisions for liabilities and charges are

as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Reserve for employee benefits 3310 - 3,229 -
Reserve for employee termination benefit 1,740 - 1617 -
Provision for unused vacations 1,124 - 1171 -
Reserve for bonuses 313 - 302 -
Provisions for other employee rights 133 - 139 -
Total provisions 3,310 - 3,229

Movement of reserve for employee termination benefits during the period is as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

At the beginning of the year 1,617 1,375
Interest rate cost 193 151
Service cost 163 164
Payments during the year (218) (129)
Actuarial difference (*) (15) 56
At the end of the year 1,740 1,617

) Actuarial (loss)profit is accounted under other comprehensive income since 1 January 2013,

18 - EQUITY
Share capital

As at 31 December 2016, the share in capital of the Company amounts to TL 87,000 and composed of
8.700.000.000 shares with a face value of TL 0.01 each (31 December 2015: capital shares TL 65,000,
nominal value: 6.500,000.000).

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the share capital and ownership structure of the
Company is as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Amount of Share Amount of Share
Share(TL) Percentage({%a) Share(TL) Percentape(%)
Vakilbank 51,080 2058.71 38,163 58.71
(iiines Sigorta AS 13,615 %o l5.65 10,172 15.65
Publicly traded (*) 19,608 %2254 14,647 22,53
Other 2,698 ilo 2018 311
Pain-in capital 87,000 o100 65,000 100

{*)  The ratio is caleulated from the shares of the Company registered at Takasbank.
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18 - EQUITY (Continued)
Capital reserves

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, capital reserves amounted to TL 353 consists of
inflation adjustment differences of paid-in capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2016, revaluation difference on tangible assets amounting to TL 17,517
{31 December 2015: TL 15,105) is accounted directly in equity. As at 31 December 2016 the
marketable securities valuation differences amounts to TL 3,468 (31 December 2015: 2,678 TL).

Profit reserves

As at 31 December 2016, profit reserves of the Group consists of first legal reserves amounting to
TL 5,110 {31 December 2015: TL 3910) and extraordinary reserves amounting to TL 33,400
{31 December 2015: TL 32,963).

Profit distribution

Retained earnings as per the statutory financial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below:

According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves.
Primary reserves are 5% of statutory net profit until it reaches 20% of the Company’s share capital.
Secondary reserves are 10% of profit distributed in excess of 5% of share capital. According to the
Turkish Commercial Code, as long as legal reserves do not exceed 30% of share capital, they can be
used to offset losses but cannot be used in any other way.

At the Annual General Assembly held on 12 April 2016, due to the 2015 year end consolidated gain
amounting TL 23 637, it has been decided to allocate TL 1,180 of first legal reserves, to be added to
the capital TL 22,000 to give bonus shares and to reserve extraordinary reserve TL 457,

19 - OPERATING EXPENSES
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, general administrative expenses included in the

operating expenses are as follow:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
General administration expenses 1,288 1,159
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,097 667
Court expenses 816 971
Consultancy expenses 752 584
Transportation expenscs 332 360
MNotary expenses 299 312
Marketing expenses 136 128
MNon-deductible expenses 116 117
Taxes, duties and charges expenses TS 130
Printing, stationary and office expenses 79 9]
Registration expenses 24 27
Other operating expenses 556 472
Total Eem:ra[ administrative expenses 5574 5,018
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19 - OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, personnel expenses included in the
operating expenses are as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Salaries 7,184 6,604
Social security premiums and other contributions 1,024 871
Personnel insurance expenses 714 776
Other personnel expenses 472 434
Total personnel expenses 9,394 8,685

20 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSE
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2013, other operating income is as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Foreign exchange gains 19,125 32,490
Interest income from non-performing loans 5.984 2,129
Provisions reversed during the year 2,603 985
Default interest income 2,566 1,248
Income from derivative transactions 1,012 -
Income from sales of asscts held for sale 486 1,055
Interest income from bank deposits 106 280
Rent income 59 26
Other income 1,420 1,550
Total other nrperating income 33,361 39,763
Other operating expenses:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Losses from marketable securities 3 -
Losses from derivative transactions - 14,909
Other expense 562 190

565 15,009
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21 - EARNINGS PER SHARE
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

At the beginning of the year
Total number of outstanding shares 8, 700,000,000 6,500,000,000
At the beginning of the year
Total number of outstandiug shares 8,700,000,000 6,500,000,000
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Net income for the period 23284 23,637
Number of outstanding shares
with a nominal value of TL | 8,700,000,000 8,700,000,000
Earnings/Losses per share (TL) 0.002676 0.002716

®r  Capital increase performed through internal resources and camings per share caleulated for the previous
penod accordingly.

22 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, details of related party balances are as follows:

31 December 2016 3 December 2015

TL FC TL FC
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 2,153 5,208 1,128 2,935
Bank deposits 2,153 5,298 1,128 2,935
Giines Sigorta A5, 1,674 - 2,110 -
Valkaf Gayrimenkul Yatinm Ortaklifn A 5. - - 109 -
Finance lease receivables 1,674 - 2,219 -
Valkaf Faktoring A.5. 3,606 - 3,009 -
Vakaf Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A5, 1,921 - 1,735 -
Vakif Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S. 266 - 217 -
Total investment securities
available for sale 5,793 - 4,961 -
Valkaf Faktoring A S. 2 - 2 -
Vakaf Emeklilik A.S. 4 - - -
Valkaf Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 2 - 2 -
Due from related parties 8 - 4 =
Tickiye Vakiflar Bankas: T A0, 12,712 227342 - 82,273
Vakifbank International AG - 91,589 - 78,518
Borrowings 12,712 318,931 - 160,791
Giines Sigorta A.S. 2,449 - 3,144 -
Due to related parties 2,449 - 3,144 -
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22 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, details of related party transactions are

presented below:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Giines Sigorta A.S. 212 262
Vakif Gayrimenkul Yatinim Ortakhif AS. 2 43
Finance lease interest income 214 305
Tiirkive Valaflar Bankas: T.A.O. 33 171
Interest income from related parties 33 171
Vakifbank - interest expense 6,405 3,101
Vakifbank International AG-interest expense 3,296 4,329
Vakifbank - commission expense 36 25
Finance expenses of related parties 9,737 7,455
Giines Sigorta A.S. 6 1,229
Vakif Emeklilik A.S. 40 36
Other incomes of related parties 46 1,265

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

Giines Sigorta A.S. 545 505
Tiirkiyve Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 36 38
Vakif Yatinm Menkul Degerler AS. 27 23
Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret AS. 8 -
Vakif Emeklilik A S. ] -
Other expenses of related parties 622 656

Executive management compensation

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, Group’s exceutive management compensations are as follows:

Compensation to the exccutive management

31 December 2016

9495

31 December 2015

1,131

Total

995

1,131

The executive management of the Group consists of general manager, assistant general managers,
members of the board of directors and the members of the audit committee.
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23 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Collaterals received

Asg at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the collaterals obtained by the Group against finance lease

receivables are as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TL FC TL FC
Guarantees 3,137,941 10,693,565 - -
Mortgages 259,149 459,293 167,764 329,697
Letters of guarantee 16,960 4,927 16,565 4071
Cash blockage 170 1,224 121 79
Others 124,003 62,406 102,655 35,346
Total 3,538,223 11,221,415 287,105 369,193
Commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has irrevocable commitments amounted to TL 53,150
(31 December 2015: TL 29,140) arising from letter of credits used for the tangible asset purchases

subject to finance leases. The distribution of the commitments according to currency types is as
follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Euro 23,296 8,897
TL 11,637 12,078
US Dollar 10,927 6,569
CHF 5,134 1,596
JIPY 2,156 -
Total 53,150 29,140
Revocable commiimenis

As at 31 December 2016, Group's financial lease commitments amounts to TL 259,315 (31 December

2015: TL 218,328).

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

TL FC TL FC
Financial lease commitmenits 48,976 210,339 47 473 170,855
Total 48,976 210,339 47,473 170,855
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23 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of derivative financial instruments are as

follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Currency swap - purchase 92,385 -
Currency swap — sales - 101,303

Total

92,385 101,303

24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the below risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of
capital. The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

. credit risk
. liquidity risk
. market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s
risk management framework. The Board of Directors monitors the effectiveness of the risk
management system through various mechanism established within the Group.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk

Credit risk is basically defined as the possibility that counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in
accordance under agreed terms of a contract. The Group aims to reduce exposed credit risks by
entering into contracts with the counterparties having high credibility and by obtaining sufficient
collateral against the loans provided. Besides, the Group analyze the financial position and the
credibility of the customers and aims to support this analysis with intelligence reports obtained from
the third parties. In addition, the sector and the geographical position of customers, where they operate
and other factors that may affect their operations are considered in the evaluation process of loans.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis to minimize the credit risk. Credit risk 15 aimed to be controlled by the limits set by the Board of
Directors,

Finance lease receivables cover many kinds of customers in different sectors. For the current balances
of the customers, credit evaluations are done periodically.

Balance sheet items of the Group, which are subject to credit risk, are as follows:

finance lease receivables

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
banks

other receivables
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, sectoral distribution of finance lease receivables
which are not under impaired is as follows:

31 December 2016  __31 December 2015

Amount (%) Amount (%)
Manufacturing 660,291 44.02 509,683 39.26
Construction 241,953 16.13 204,290 15.74
Wholesale, retail and trading 151,804 10,12 147,927 11.39
Transportation, warchousing
and communication 94 306 6.29 111,606 8.60
Education 79 820 5.32 88,901 6.85
Hotels and restaurants 82,692 5.51 75,980 5.85
R.eal estate 53,901 3.59 51,643 3.98
Health and social services 37,154 248 38914 3.00
Agriculture 38,486 2.57 31,986 2.46
Mining 42,073 2.80 19,491 1.50
Financial intermediary services 5,006 0.34 12,187 0.94
Other social and individual services 8,073 0.54 4,010 0.31
Others 4,394 0,29 1,687 0.12
Total 1,500,133 1,298,305 100
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its
financial liabilities.

Management of liguidity risk
Main responsibility for the liquidity risk management belongs to Board of Directors. Board of
Directors has created a suitable liquidity risk management for the short, medium and long term

funding and liquidity needs. The Group manages the liquidity risk by following forecasted and actual
cash flows, matching the terms of financial assets and liabilities and securing necessary funds.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The following table provides undiscounted cash flows with respect to the contractual (or expected)
maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities:

Total Contractual Maore
Carrying expected cash Mows/ 6 months 6-12 1-2 1.5 than 5
31 December 2016 Amount out Mlows or less months VEArs Years VEATS
Funds Bormowed 1,465 056 1,524,151 602,645 341,212 580,294
Miscellaneous payables and other
liahilities 43,197 43,197 43,197
Total 1,508,253 1,567 348 645,841 341,212 550,294
Total Contractual More
Carrying expected cash Mows/ 6 months 6-12 1-2 -5 than 5
31 December 2015 Amount out Mlows or less months VEArs Years VEArs
Funds Borrowed 1.316.237 1,357,693 730,773 225323 267,517 134,080
Miscellaneous payables and other
liahilities 25,523 25,523 25,923
Total 1,342,160 1,383,616 76,696 215,513 167,517 134,080
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Group’s income or the value of its financial instruments will be affected
through the changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and
credit spreads. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
cxposurcs within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the retun on risk.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies, such as lease
operations and borrowings. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from foreign currency
transactions were recorded in the period transactions occurred. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are converted into TL at the exchange rates prevailing at balance
sheet date with the resulting exchange differences recognized in the statement of income as foreign
exchange gain or loss.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group's foreign currency assets and liabilities
with their TL equivalents are as follows:

31 December 2016 US Dollar Euro JPY GBP Total
Banks 10,204 3,952 - 14,156
Finance lease receivables, net (1) 278,638 903,552 10 1182200
Other asscts - 285 - 285
Prepaid expenses - 3383 - 3,383
Total Assets 288,842 911,172 - 1 1,200,024
Borrowings 280,378 879,331 - = 1,159,709
Other liabilities 821 7.271 2,156 - 10,248
Miscellaneous payables 1,883 10,382 - - 12,265
Deferred Income 323 1,243 - - 1,566
Tuotal liabilities 283,405 898,227 2,156 - 1,183,788
Net financial statement position 5,437 12,945 (2,156) 10 16,236
Net off-balance sheet items position - = - =
MNet fnreiEn currency position 5437 12,945 (2,150) 10 16,230
31 December 2015 US Dollar Euro CHF Total
Banks 31,381 23,045 - 54,426
Finance lease receivables, net ™Y J26818 GE0,325 324 1,007 467
Other asscts 16 3,866 - 3,882
Total assets 358,215 T07,236 324 1,065,775
Borrowings 315,841 641,385 - 957.226
Miscellaneous payvables 761 2883 1,596 5,240
Other liabilities 69 %353 - 9,322
Deferred Income 307 1,074 - 1,381
Total liabilities 317,878 653,695 1,596 973,169
Net financial statement position 40,337 53,541 (1,272) 92,606
Net off-balance sheet items position (32,434) (68,869) - (101,303)
Net foreign currency position 7,903 (15,328) (1,272) (8.697]
M Impaired receivables which is stated as FC in financial statements are not included.

2 Non-cash loans are not included i the calculation of foreign currency posilion.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The effects of 10 percent change of the TL against the following currencies on the consolidated
statement of income and consolidated equity for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015 are shown below.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

__ Profit/(Loss) Equity ©
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of foreign of foreign of Toreign of foreign

31 December 2016 currency currency currency currency
10% change of the US Dollar against TL

1-Net USD asset/liability 344 (544) 544 (344]
2-Hedged portion of TL against USD {-) - - - -
3-Net effect of US Dollar(1+2) 544 (544) 544 (544)
10%% change of the Euro against TL

4-Net Euro asset/liability 1,295 (1,295) 1,295 (1.295]
5-Hedged portion of TL against Euro (-) - - - -
6-Net effect of Euro (4+5) 1,295 {1,295) 1,295 (1,295)
10% change of the JPY against TL

T-MNet JPY asset/liability {216) 216 (216) 216
8-Hedged portion of TL against JPY (=) - - - -
9-Net effect of JPY (7+8) {21a4) 216 (216) 216
10% change of the GBP against TL

10-Net GBP asset/liability 1 (0 1 (n
11-Hedged portion of TL against GEP (-} - - - -
12-Net effect of GBP (10+11) 1 in 1 (11

Tr Raporda Japon yeni meveut
TOTAL (3+6+9+12) 1,624 (1,624) 1,624 (1,624]

) Equity effect includes profiv{loss) effect.

Profit / (Loss) Equity
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of forcign of foreign of foreign of Toreign

31 December 2015 currency currency currency currency
10% change of the US Dollar against TL
1-Net USI) asset/liability T0 (790) 790 (7907
2-Hedged portion of TL agamnst USD (-) - - - -
J-Net effect of US Dollar(1+2) 700 (790) 790 (7907
10% change of the Euro against TL
4-Met Euro asset/liability (1,533) 1,533 (1,533) 1,533
5-Hedged portion of TL against Euro (-) - - - -
6-Net effect of Euro (4+5) (1,533) 1,533 (1,533) 1,533
10% change of the CHF against TL
7-Met CHF assev/liability (127) 127 (127) 127
8-Hedged portion of TL against CHF (-) - - - -
9-Net effect of CHF (7+8) {127) 127 (127) 127
TOTAL (3+6+9) {870) 870 (870) 870
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Exposure to interest rate risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed to the risk of loss from fluctuations in
the future cash flows because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed
principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing
bands.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through its fixed and variable rate borrowings. The risk is
managed by appropriate distribution between fixed and variable rate borrowings.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the interest bearing financial assets and liabilities of the Group are
as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Financial assets and liabilities with fixed interest rate

Time deposits 7,390 -
Finance lease receivables, net 1,500,133 1,298,305
Borrowings 1,392,071 1,275,569
Financial assets and liabilities with variable interest rate

Funds borrowed 72,985 40,668
Interest rate sensitivity

Interest rate sensitivity of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the fair
values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held as at 31 December 2016 and effect on
net interest income of floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held.

Profit or Loss Eguity O
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2016 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilitics (7 7 (7) 7
Total, net (7 7 {7 7
Profit or Loss Eguity U
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2015 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilities i4) 4 (4) 4
Total, net (4) 4 4) 4

{*)  Equity effect includes profit{loss) effect.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base and to maintain a balance between the debt and
equity in an effective way so as to increase its profit.

Along with no change in the strategy of the Group in 2015, the ratio of the equities to the debts is 11%
(31 December 2015: 11%). As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 |, the debt to equity ratio

is as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Borrowings 1,465,056 1,316,237
Miscellaneous payables 20,035 10,054
Other liabilities 23,162 15,869
Total Liabilities 1,508,253 1,342,160
Banks (-) (16,681) (55,658)
Net debt 1,491,572 1,286,502
Total Equity 170,103 143,644
Equity/Debt ratio %11 %11

25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair values of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, certain judgments made to
estimate the fair value can cause an adjusiment to the fair value at current market conditions.

Fair values of the financial lease receivables and funds borrowed have been determined by discounting
the relevant cash flows by market interest rates prevailing as at balance sheet date . The carrying amounts
of the bank balances and miscellancous payables and other liabilities are assumed that they approximate
their fair value due to their short-term nature.

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
vialue vilue value value
Financial assets
Finance lease receivables, net 1,500,133 1,440,762 1,298,305 1,240,627
Banks 16,681 16,681 55,658 55,658
Fimancial liabilities
Borrowings 1,465,056 1,388,182 1,316,237 1,218,615
Miscellaneous payables and other liabilities 43,197 43,197 25923 25923
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15 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Classification of Fair Value Measurement

TFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure requires the disclosure of the classification of fair value
measurements according to a fair value hierarchy by reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value. This
classification basically relies on whether the relevant inputs are observable or not. Observable inputs
refer to the use of market data obtained from independent sources, whereas unobservable inputs refer
to the use of predictions and assumptions about the market made by the Company. This distinction
brings about a fair value measurement classification generally as follows:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Lewvel 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Classification requires using observable market data if possible.

The classification of fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
15 as follows at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 20135:

31 December 2016 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total

Available for sale financial asscts:
Investments in equity participations - - 5,793 5,793

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Derivative liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Assets/Liabilities - - 5,793 5,793

= Available for sale financial assets presented at 3. level includes fair values of equity shares whose fair
value has been determined by independent valuation institulions,

31 December 2015 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total
Awvailable for sale financial assets:
Investments in equity participations ™ - - 4,961 4,961
Financial asscts at fair value through

profit or loss:
Denvative liabilities - (13,673) - (13,673}
Total Financial Assets/Liabilities - (13,673) 4,961 (8,712)

= Available for sale financial assets presented at 3. level includes fair values of equity shares whose fair
value has been determined by independent valuation institutions.

56



VAKIF LERSING .
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2016 1 14

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

NIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Balance at the beginning of the period 4,961 4 850

Total gains for the period recognized under equity 832 111
Dividend received during the period - -

Balance at the end of the period 5,793 4,961

26 - OTHER ISSUES

None,

17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

MNone.
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